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ìer pes Smed yeer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue.
(ceefuì-mìsì Mes[³egu[ yeBkeÀ)

(jefpe.ke´ÀëScedSmedmeerSmed/meerDeej/287/2008 efo.23.10.2008)

meYeemeoebme Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®eer met®evee

yeBkesÀ®eer 42 Jeer Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYee, jefJeJeej efoveebkeÀ 30 petve 2013 jespeer, mekeÀeUer 10 Jeepelee ìerHe ìe@He HueePee, ueeueyeneotj Meeðeer ceeie&, JeeieUs 

Fmìsì, þeCes – 400 604 ³esLes Heg{erue keÀecekeÀepee®ee efJe®eej keÀjC³eemeeþer YejCeej Deens. lejer meYeemeoebveer JesUsJej GHeefmLele jneJes, ner efJevebleer.

meYesHeg{erue efJe<e³e

1. efo. 20 ces 2012 jespeer Peeuesu³ee ceeieerue meYes®es FefleJe=lle Jee®etve keÀe³ece keÀjCes.
2. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves meeoj kesÀuesuee efo.31.03.2013 DeKesj®³ee Je<ee&®ee DenJeeue, leeUsyebo Je veHeÀeleesìeHe$ekeÀ cebpetj keÀjÀve veHeÀeJeeìCeer keÀjCes 

DeeefCe JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀeb®³ee DenJeeuee®eer veeWo IesCes.
3. JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀebveer He´ceeefCele kesÀu³eevegmeej yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele ³esCes yeekeÀer ceeHeÀerme cebpegjer osCes.
4. meve 2013-2014 ³ee  DeeefLe&keÀ  Je<ee&meeþer JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀeb®eer vesceCetkeÀ keÀjCes Je l³eeb®es mesJeeMegukeÀ þjefJeC³ee®ee DeefOekeÀej meb®eeuekeÀ 

ceb[Ueme osCes. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U  ces. ieesKeues DeeefCe meeþs ®eeì&[& DekeÀeGÀvìCìmed, 302 / 303, GÐeesie cebefoj veb. 1,  7 - meer,  Yeeieespeer keÀerrj 
ceeie&, ceenerce, cebgbyeF& - 400016 ³eeb®³ee vesceCegkeÀer®eer efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle Deens.

5. Oecee&oe³e/meeJe&peefvekeÀ keÀejCeemeeþer DebMeoeve efveOeerletve mebmLeebvee osCeieer osCesyeeyele He´mleeJeeme ceev³elee osCes.  
6. Heesì efve³ece ogjÀmleerme ceev³elee osCes.
7. cee. DeO³e#eeb®³ee mebceleerves ³esCeejs Dee³el³ee JesUs®es efJe<e³e.

veeWoCeerke=Àle keÀe³ee&ue³e 

ìer pes Smed yeer neTme, Huee@ì veb.5yeer, jes[ vebb. 2,
JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes (He) - 400604
efoveebkeÀë 13/06/2013

ìer pes Smed yeer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee DeeosMeeJejÀve

Þeer. me. j. GleskeÀj
cegK³e keÀe³e&keÀejer DeefOekeÀejer

met®evee  ë  10 Jeepetve 30 efceefveìebHe³e¥le ieCeHetleea  ve  Peeu³eeme  meYee mLeefiele kesÀueer peeF&ue  Je  mLeefiele Peeuesueer meYee l³ee®e efþkeÀeCeer l³ee®e efoJeMeer  mekeÀeUer                        
             10 Jeepetve 40 efceefveìebveer IesC³eele ³esF&ue. l³ee meYesme ieCeHetleea®eer Je JesieU³ee met®eves®eer DeeJeM³ekeÀlee veener.

meYeemeoebme cenlJee®³ee met®evee ë
1. meYeemeoebvee Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesHeg{s keÀener He´Mve/met®evee ceeb[eJe³ee®³ee Demeleerue lej l³eebveer l³ee 20 petve, 2013 He³e¥le keÀecekeÀepee®³ee JesUsle, 

veeWoCeerke=Àle keÀe³ee&ue³eele uesKeer mJejÀHeele ÐeeJ³eele.
2. yeBkesÀ®³ee Heesìefve³ece ke´À.42(iii) DevJe³ebs p³ee meYeemeoebveer 31 cee®e&, 2010 Je<ee&meeþer®ee ueeYeebMe mJeerkeÀejuee vemesue l³eebveer efo. 20 Dee@iemì, 

2013 HetJeea ve vesu³eeme l³eeb®³ee ueeYeebMeeb®eer jkeÌkeÀce jeKeerJe efveOeerceO³es pecee keÀjC³eele ³esF&ue. p³ee meYeemeoebvee ueeYeebMe He$ekesÀ efceUeueer vemeleerue l³eebveer 
leer yeBkesÀ®³ee MesDeme& efJeYeeie, ceOegkeÀj YeJeve, jes[ veb. 16, JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes - 400 604 ³esLeerue keÀe³ee&ue³eeletve IesTve peeJeerle.

3. meYeemeoebveer veebJe, Hellee DeLeJee Jeejmeoej yeoueuee Demeu³eeme l³ee®eer MesDeme& efJeYeeie, ceOegkeÀj YeJeve, jes[ veb. 16, JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes - 400 604 
³esLes veebWo keÀjÀve I³eeJeer.

4. MesDej meìeaefHeÀkesÀìmed efceUeueer vemeu³eeme leer yeBkesÀ®³ee MesDeme& efJeYeeie, ceOegkeÀj YeJeve, jes[ veb. 16, JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes - 400 604 ³esLeerue 
keÀe³ee&ue³eeletve IesTve peeJeerle.

5. ueeYeebMe DeeHeu³ee ye®ele DeLeJee Dev³e Keel³eele pecee keÀjC³eemebyebOeer®es He$e yeBkesÀ®³ee MesDeme& efJeYeeie, ceOegkeÀj YeJeve, jes[ veb. 16, JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes - 
400 604 ³esLeerue keÀe³ee&ue³eele DeeCetve efou³eeme ueeYeebMee®eer jkeÌkeÀce Keel³eele pecee keÀjlee ³esF&ue.
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meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U

yeBkesÀ®es Jeefj<þ DeefOekeÀejer

1. Þeer. efJe. De. JewMebHee³eve Sce.ìskeÀ(He´e@[keÌMeve), ®eeì&[& FbefpeefveDej DeO³e#e
2. Þeer. Yee. Jee. oeles yeer.Smed .meer., ef[Hueescee ìskeÀ (Hesvìme) GHeeO³e#e
3. meew. De. j. DeeHeìs yeer.Smed.meer., Sued.Sued.yeer meb®eeefuekeÀe
4. Þeer. j. Keg. DeiejJeeue yeer.Sme.meer. meb®eeuekeÀ
5. meew. He¨ee yee. De³³ej yeer.keÀe@ced., S.meer.S. meb®eeefuekeÀe
6. Þeer. j. Keg. keÀveeveer ef[Hueescee Fve ceske@ÀefvekeÀue FbefpeefveDeefjbie meb®eeuekeÀ
7. Þeer. ce. Oe. Keglee[ss meb®eeuekeÀ
8. Þeer. vee. o. ceeb[ies Sced.Smed.meer., ef[.S®e.F&. meb®eeuekeÀ
9. Þeer. meer. veboieesHeeU cesveve yeer.S., yeer.peer.Sued. meb®eeuekeÀ
10. Þeer. efJe. ce. HelkeÀer Sced.keÀe@ce., Sued.Sued.yeer., S.Dee³ed.meer.[yuet.S., SHeÀ.meer.S. meb®eeuekeÀ
11. Þeer. He´. o. þeketÀj yeer.keÀe@ced., Sued.Sued.yeer. meb®eeuekeÀ
12. Þeer. efJeveesokegÀceej yevmeue SHeÀ.meer.S. mJeerke=Àle meb®eeuekeÀ
13. Þeer. me. j. GleskeÀj yeer.keÀe@ced., Sued.Sued.yeer., meer.S.Dee³e.Dee³e.yeer-1 cegK³e keÀe³e&keÀejer DeefOekeÀejer

veeWoCeerke=Àle keÀe³ee&ue³e
 ìerpesSmedyeer neTme, Huee@ì veb.5-yeer, jes[ veb.2, JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes -400 604

otjOJeveer – 25878500   He@ÀkeÌme - 25878650

JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKee Hejer#ekeÀ
peesMeer Je keÀjboerkeÀj   
®eeì&[& DekeÀeGÀvìCìmed

1. Þeer. meg. He´. meeþs yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer., Dee³ed.meer.[yu³eg.S., meer.Smed. mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
2. Þeer. meg. yee. veeieJeskeÀj Sced.keÀe@ced., [er.yeer.Sced., meer.Smed. mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
3. Þeer. mebb. efJe. HeeþkeÀ yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer., yeer.peer.Sued., meer.SHedÀ.S.- F´bìj. GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
4. Þeer. efJe. je. veecepeesMeer yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
5. Þeer. Þeer. Je. cnmekeÀj Sce.keÀe@ced., Sued.Sued.yeer., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
6. Þeer. me. n. keÀesjevves yeer.keÀe@ced., Sued.Sued.yeer., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
7. Þeer. meg. Yee. Hegjesefnle yeer.keÀe@ce., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer., ef[.ìer.Dee³ed.Deej.Sced. GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
8. Þeer. iees. De. ieebieue yeer.keÀe@ced., pes.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
9. Þeer. efve. veb. DeejskeÀj yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
10. Þeer. mJe. ue. peebYeUs yeer.F&.(Dee³e.ìer.) GHe-mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
11. Þeer. n. vee. kegÀuekeÀCeea yeer.keÀe@ced. mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
12. Þeer. efJe. ie. veJejs yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
13. Þeer. meg. ce. ce³eskeÀj yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
14. Þeer. J³eb. ®eb. cegodiesjerkeÀj yeer.F&.(ceske@ÀefvekeÀue),Heer.peer.[er.Sced.,meer.Dee³ed.,Smed.S,meer.Dee³e.S,ISO 27000 LA mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
15. Þeer. ce. cee. HeÀ[kesÀ yeer.keÀe@ced., Sued.Sued.yeer., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer., meer.Smed.-Fbìj mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
16. Þeer. ce. Heeb. iees[mes yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
17. Þeer. ns. j. yeeHeì yeer.Smed.meer., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer., Sued.Sued.yeer., mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
18. Þeer. efJe. o. efoef#ele yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
19. Þeer. efJe. ie. ieesjs yeer.keÀe@ced., pes.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ             
20. Þeer. Oe. ue. kegÀuekeÀCeea yeer.keÀe@ced., pes.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer., Deesj@keÀue mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
21. meew. mJeeleer keÀew. keÀUkesÀ yeer.keÀe@ced., meer.S., meer.Smed.Fbìj(ie´gHe-1), meer.S.Dee³ed.Dee³ed.yeer. mene.mejJ³eJemLeeHekeÀ
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TJSB Sahakari Bank Ltd.
                                           (Multi-State Scheduled Bank)

(Reg.No.MSCS/CR/287/2008 Date: 23/10/2008)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
nd th

42 Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held on Sunday, 30  June 2013 at 10.00 a.m. at Tip Top Plaza, L.B.S. 

Road, Wagle  Estate, Thane  -  400604  to transact  following  business. Members  are  requested  to  attend  the 

meeting on time.

AGENDA
th

1. To read and confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on 20  May 2012.

2. To approve the Annual Report placed by the Board of Directors for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2013, 

Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account, Appropriation of Profit and take a note of Statutory Auditor's report.

3. To write off the bad and doubtful loan accounts, certified by the Statutory Auditors.

4. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2013-14 and to authorize Board of Directors to fix their 

remuneration. The Board of Directors recommends M/s. Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered Accountants, 302 / 303, 

Udyog Mandir No.1, 7-C, Bhagoji Keer Marg, Mahim, Mumbai - 400016 for appointment as Statutory Auditors.

5. To approve the proposal of distribution of donations out of charitable fund of the Bank, to Charitable / Social 

Institutions.

6. To approve Bye-Law amendments as proposed.

7. Any other matter with the permission of the Chair.

Registered Office :

TJSB Sahakari Bank Ltd.
TJSB House, Plot No. 5B, Road No. 2,
Wagle Estate, Thane (West) 400 604

Date: 13/06/2013 

By Order of the Board of Directors

Shri. S. R. Utekar
Chief Executive Officer

Note : If within half an hour after the time appointed for the meeting, the quorum is not formed, the meeting would stand 

adjourned and this adjourned meeting shall be held at 10.40 am on the same day and same place. This adjourned meeting will 

not require any separate notice or quorum.

1. Members who wish to have any additional information or those who wish to make any suggestions should submit their 
threquest in writing at the Registered Office of the Bank on or before 20  June 2013 during office hours.

st th2. Those members who will not collect their dividend for the year ended 31  March 2010  on or before 20  August 2013, 

such dividend will be forfeited and transferred to Statutory Reserve of the bank as per Bye-law No. 42(iii). Those 

members who have not received the dividend warrants are requested to collect the same from Shares Department 

located at Madhukar Bhavan, Road No. 16, Wagle Estate, Thane (West) - 400604.

3. Any change in Name, Address or Nomination of the member should be intimated immediately to the Bank at Shares 

Dept., Madhukar Bhavan, Road No. 16, Wagle Estate, Thane (West) - 400604 in writing.

4. Members may enquire at Shares Dept., Madhukar Bhavan, Road No. 16, Wagle Estate, Thane (West) - 400604 for 

non-receipt of Share Certificate.

5. Dividend will be transferred to respective saving or other account of the Members on written request submitted to 

Shares Dept., Madhukar Bhavan, Road No. 16, Wagle Estate, Thane (West) - 400604 of the bank.

Important Notice to the Members
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1.  SHRI V. A. VAISHAMPAYAN M.TECH.(PRODUCTION)  CHAIRMAN 

CHARTERED ENGINEER

2. SHRI B. V. DATE B.Sc., DIPLOMA TECH(PAINTS) VICE-CHAIRMAN

3. MRS. A. R. APTE B.Sc., LLB     DIRECTOR

4. SHRI R. K. AGARWAL B.Sc.  DIRECTOR

5. MRS. P. B. IYER B.Com., A.C.A.        DIRECTOR

6. SHRI  R. K. KANANI Diploma in Mech. Engg. DIRECTOR

7. SHRI M. D. KHUTADE DIRECTOR

8. SHRI N. D. MANDGE M.Sc., DHE DIRECTOR

9. SHRI C. N. MENON BA, BGL DIRECTOR

10. SHRI V. M. PATKI M.Com., LLB, AICWA, FCA DIRECTOR

11. SHRI P. D. THAKUR B.Com., LLB DIRECTOR

12. SHRI VINODKUMAR BANSAL FCA CO-OPTED DIRECTOR

13. SHRI S. R. UTEKAR B.Com., LLB, CAIIB-I CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Registered Office:
TJSB House, Plot No. 5B, Road No. 2,

Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane (W) – 400 604
Phone – 25878500  Fax – 25878650

Statutory Auditors:
Joshi & Karandikar
Chartered Accountants

1. SHRI S. P. SATHE B.Com., CAIIB, ICWA, CS GENERAL MANAGER

2. SHRI S. B. NAGWEKAR M.Com., DBM, CS GENERAL MANAGER

3. SHRI S. V. PATHAK B.Com., CAIIB, BGL, CFA-Inter DY.GENERAL MANAGER

4. SHRI V. R. NAMJOSHI B.Com.,CAIIB DY.GENERAL MANAGER

5. SHRI S. V. MHASKAR M.Com., LLB, CAIIB DY.GENERAL MANAGER

6. SHRI S. H. KORANNE B.Com., LLB, CAIIB                        DY.GENERAL MANAGER

7. SHRI S. B. PUROHIT B.Com., CAIIB, DTIRM DY.GENERAL MANAGER

8. SHRI G. A. GANGAL B.Com., JAIIB DY.GENERAL MANAGER

9. SHRI N. N. AREKAR B.Com., CAIIB DY.GENERAL MANAGER

10. SHRI S. L. JAMBHALE B.E.(IT) DY.GENERAL MANAGER

11. SHRI V. G. NAVARE B.Com.,CAIIB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

12. SHRI H. N. KULKARNI B.Com ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

13. SHRI S. M. MAYEKAR B.Com., CAIIB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

14. SHRI V. C. MUDGERIKAR B.E.(MECH)PGDM,CISA,CIA,ISO  27000LA ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

15. SHRI M. M. PHADKE B.Com., LLB, CAIIB, Inter CS ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

16. SHRI M. P. GODSE B.Com., CAIIB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

17. SHRI D. L. KULKARNI B.Com., JAIIB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

18. SHRI H. R. BAPAT B.Sc., CAIIB, LLB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

19. SHRI V. D. DIXIT B.Com., CAIIB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

20. SHRI V. G. GORE B.Com., JAIIB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER

21. MRS. S. K. KALKE B.Com., C.A., CS INTER (GR I), CAIIB ASST.GENERAL MANAGER



5 42 Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue  

42 Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue 2012-13

mevceeveveer³e meYeemeo yebOeg-Yeefieveerbvees,

yeBkesÀ®³ee 42 J³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesceO³es meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee Jeleerves ceer 
DeeHeues neefo&keÀ mJeeiele keÀjlees. meve 2012-13®³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&leerue 
keÀeceefiejer®ee Dee{eJee ³ee meYesHeg{s þsJeleevee ceuee efJeMes<e Deevebo nesle Deens. 
megjÀJeeleeruee DeeHeCe yeBkesÀuee osle Demeuesu³ee meelel³eHetCe& Heeefþby³eeyeÎue ceer 
ke=Àle%elee J³ekeÌle keÀjlees.

DeLe&J³eJemLesuee iesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le Jee{er®ee Jesie keÀe³ece jeKelee Deeuesuee veener 
Je ³ee HeeMJe&YetceerJej yeBkesÀuee J³eJemee³eJe=Ooer Je veHeÌ³ee®eer HeeleUer keÀe³ece jeKeCes 
DeeJneveelcekeÀ þjues Deens.

meve 2012-13 ceOeerue yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJemee³ee®eer þUkeÀ JewefMe<ì³es DeeHeu³ee 
meceesj ceeb[C³eeHetJeer& mebHetCe& yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³eeJej HeefjCeece keÀjCeeN³ee peeieeflekeÀ Je 
Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesJejerue Ie[ecees[eR®ee Hejece<e& IesCes DeeJeM³ekeÀ Deens.

peeieeflekeÀ DeeefLe&keÀ efmLeleer ë

iesu³ee Je<ee&le peeieeflekeÀ efJelleer³e yeepeejele megOeejCee efomele Demeueer lejer DeeefLe&keÀ 
JeeleeJejCe ceboer®es®e jeefnues Deens. mLeeefvekeÀ HeeleUerJej Jee{er®ee Jesie GlmeenJeOe&keÀ 
veener. keÀejCe ceneieeF&®ee efveoxMeebkeÀ DeeefLe&keÀ megOeejCesuee HeÀejmee JeeJe osCeeje 
veener. efyeiejMesleer GlHeeovee®³ee efkebÀceleer keÀceer Peeuesu³ee Demeu³ee lejer 
DevveOeev³ee®³ee efkebÀceleerb®eer HeeleUer ®e{er jeefnu³eeves IeeTkeÀ cetu³e efveoxMeebkeÀ Je 
ie´enkeÀ cetu³e efveoxMeebkeÀeleerue leHeÀeJele Jee{le Deens.

iesu³ee keÀener ceefnv³eeleerue peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLes®es ef®e$e mebefceÞe Deens. 
DecesefjkesÀ®³ee {esyeU GlHevvee®³ee ojele 2012®³ee ®eewL³ee efleceenerle ie=nefJeke´Àer 
Je yeskeÀejer ³eeb®³eele keÀenerMeer megOeejCee Peeu³eecegUs Jee{ Peeuesueer efometve ³esle Deens. 
leLeeefHe DecesefjkesÀleerue keÀpe& GYeejCeer OeesjCe Je DeuHekeÀeueerve mecee³eespeve ³eeb®es 
meeJeì DeeefLe&keÀ HeefjefmLeleerJej efomele Deens. ³egjesHeer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesJej jepekeÀer³e 
DeefmLejlee, {esyeU GlHevveeleerue melele®eer Ieì Je DeeefLe&keÀ mecee³eespeve ³eeb®es 
efJeHejerle HeefjCeece efomele Deensle. ®eerve Je Flej efJekeÀmeveMeerue DeLe&J³eJemLeebceO³es 
Jee{er®ee Jesie HetJe&HeoeJej ³esle Demeleevee Flej$e cee$e ceeieCeer®ee DeYeeJe Je keÀceer 
nesCeejer iegbleJeCetkeÀ ³eebcegUs DeHesef#ele Jee{ nesleevee efomele veener. 

DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLee HetJe&HeoeJej ³esC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee efvecee&Ce Peeu³eeves iesues 
keÀener keÀeU Demeuesues DeeefLe&keÀ megueYeerkeÀjCe ceeies Iesleues peeT MekesÀue. pej lemes 
Ie[ues lej Deieesoj®e keÀceer Demeuesu³ee Jemletb®³ee efkebÀceleer Depetvener He[C³ee®eer 
MekeÌ³elee Deens. ³ee yeouel³ee OeesjCee®ee Yeejleer³e ®eueveHegjJeþ³eeJej mekeÀejelcekeÀ 

HeefjCeece Peeuee lejer efJeosMeer DeLe&J³eJemLesves kesÀuesueer iegbleJeCetkeÀ keÀe{tve Iesleueer 
peeT MekeÀles Je ³ee®ee HeefjCeece jÀHe³ee®³ee cetu³eeJej nesT MekeÀlees.

Yeejleer³e DeeefLe&keÀ efmLeleer ë

meve 2012-13 ceO³es DeLe&J³eJemLes®³ee Jee{er®ee Jesie iesu³ee oMekeÀeleerue 
meJee&le keÀceer cnCepes 5… FlekeÀe neslee. meve 2012-13®³ee MesJeì®³ee 
efleceenerle ne Jee{er®ee Jesie Deieesoj®³ee efleceener®³ee leguevesle 4.80… FlekeÀe 
Jee{uee. efJelleer³e legìer®es {esyeU GlHevveeMeer Demeuesues He´ceeCe MesJeì®³ee efleceenerle 
5.2… ³ee megOeeefjle DeboepeeHes#ee 4.89… FlekesÀ jeefnues Deens.

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee 2012-13 ®³ee MesJeì®³ee efleceenerle GlHeeove, yeebOekeÀece, 
DeeefLe&keÀ, mesJee ³ee #es$eebceO³es Deieesoj®³ee efleceener®³ee leguevesle Jee{er®ee Jesie peemle 
neslee. Hejbleg KeeCe, GÀpee& DeeefCe meeceeefpekeÀ mesJee ³eeb®³ee Jee{er®³ee JesieeJej leeCe 
neslee.

pejer efkeÀjkeÀesU Je KeeÐe HeoeLee¥®³ee ceneieeF&®ee efveoxMeebkeÀ ®e{e Demeuee lejer 
IeeTkeÀ cetu³e efveoxMeebkeÀ meelel³eeves keÀceer nesle jeefnuee. l³ee®eer meO³ee®eer HeeleUer 
4.89… FlekeÀer Deens. J³eepeojeyeÎue efveCe&³e IesC³eemeeþer ³ee efveoxMeebkeÀele Ieì 
nesle jenCes iejpes®es Demeles. lemes Peeu³eecegUs®e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 2013 ceOeerue 
He´l³eskeÀ efleceener Dee{eJ³ee®³eeJesUer 0.25… FlekeÀe J³eepeoj keÀceer kesÀuee. 
Heg{erue Dee{eJ³ee®³ee JesUer ne oj Depetve keÀceer nesC³ee®eer DeHes#ee iegbleJeCetkeÀoej Je 
efJeMues<eCeoej keÀjle Deensle.

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2013-14 ceO³es keÀpex DeeefCe þsJeer meeOeejCeHeCes 15… DeeefCe 
14… FlekeÌ³ee Jee{C³ee®ee Deboepe efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves J³ekeÌle kesÀuesuee Deens. HeefjCeeceer 
yeBefkebÀie #es$eeleerue jesKelesJej ³eener Je<eea leeCe jenerue. lees keÀceer keÀjC³eemeeþer 
efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ yeeB[ Kejsoer®³ee ceeO³eceeletve Kegu³ee yeepeejele nmle#esHe keÀjÀ 
MekesÀue.

meve 2013-14 ®³ee keWÀo´er³e DeLe&mebkeÀuHeele DeeefLe&keÀ megOeejCeeb®ee Jesie keÀe³ece 
þsJeC³ee®eer Kee$eer osC³eele Deeueer Deens. DeeefLe&keÀ megOeejCeeb®³ee megOeeefjle 
OeesjCeevegmeej efJelleer³e letì Je Jee{er®ee oj ³eeb®es He´ceeCe meve 2013-14 ceO³es 
4.8… Je meve 2016-17 He³e¥le 3… FlekesÀ Keeueer DeeCeC³ee®ee He´³elve 
DemeCeej Deens.

FbOeveslej GlHeeoveeb®³ee Dee³eeleerle Peeuesueer Ieì Je efve³ee&leerle Peeuesu³ee Jee{ercegUs 
J³eeHeejeleerue letì ue#eCeer³eefjl³ee keÀceer Peeueer Deens. ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letì meve 
2012-13 ceO³es J³eeHeejeleerue legìeRcegUs keÀenerMeer Jee{uesueer Deens. 
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Heesì&HeÀesefueDeesbleerue iegbJeCetkeÀ DeeefCe keÀpe&He´eHleer n³eeb®³ee ceeO³eceeletve Peeuesueer 
Yeeb[Jeueer DeeJekeÀ HegjsMeer Demeueer lejerosKeerue peeieeflekeÀ HeeleUerJejerue Jee{les 
DeeefCe DeekeÀefmcekeÀ yeoue ns efjPeJe& ye@bkeÀs®³ee celes cegK³e cegÎs Deensle.

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ¢ef<ìkeÀesveevegmeej iegbleJeCegkeÀer®ee Jesie keÀe³ece jeKeuee lej®e 
DeLe&J³eJemLee DeHesef#ele Jesieeves He´ieleer keÀjÀ MekesÀue. mHeOee&lcekeÀ J³eepeoj jeKeCes 
iejpes®es Demeues lejer Hegjsmes veener. HegjJeþe J³eJemLesJejerue leeCeeb®es efve³eespeve, 
efJelleer³e megOeejCeeb®eer yeebefOeuekeÀer ³eebceOeerue mebK³eelcekeÀ Je iegCeelcekeÀ meblegueve Je 
keÀþesj J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ DevegMeemeve ³eeb®es DeJeuebyeve keÀjCes iejpes®es Deens.

Jej GuuesefKeuesu³ee keÀþerCe Je DeHeJeeoelcekeÀ efmLeleer®³ee HeeMJe&YetceerJej meve 
2012-13 ìerpesSmedyeermeeþer ®eebieues jeefnues Deens. DeeJneveelcekeÀ HeefjefmLeleer 
Demetvener yeBkesÀves meve 2012-13 ceO³es GuuesKeveer³e He´ieleer keÀjC³ee®eer DeeHeueer 
#ecelee Hegvne SkeÀoe efmeOo kesÀueer Deens.

meve 2012-13 ceOeerue yeBkesÀ®³ee J³eJeneje®eer þUkeÀ JewefMe<ì³esë

yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe J³eJenej meve 2012-13 ceO³es    8700 keÀesìeRHes#ee peemle 
Deens. ieleJe<eea®³ee leguevesle yeBkesÀves 25… Jee{ kesÀueer Deens. ®eeuet DeeefCe ye®ele 
Keel³eeleerue þsJeer    1300 keÀesìeRntve DeefOekeÀ Deensle Je DenJeeue meeueer yeBkesÀves 
efveJJeU veHeÌ³ee®ee 75 keÀesìeR®ee ìHHee ieeþuee Deens.

þsJeer ë

meve 2012-13 ceO³es mebHetCe& yeBefkebÀie #es$eeleerue þsJeeR®eer Jee{ keÀceer®e nesle Deens 
Je efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves Deboepe kesÀuesu³ee 15… He´ceeCeele þsJeer Jee{uesu³ee veenerle. 
leLeeefHe yeBkesÀves cee$e DenJeeue Je<ee&le leyyeue 22… Jee{ veeWoJeueer Deens.

þsJeeR®ee leHeMeerue KeeueerueHe´ceeCes ë

 

 jÀ.

Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesleerue Jee{leer ceneieeF& Je ®e{s J³eepeoj ³eecegUs ye®ele Je 
®eeuet Keel³eeJejerue efMeuuekeÀ cegoleþsJeerbkeÀ[s JeUJeueer iesueer. mìe@keÀ ceekexÀì, 
efj³eue Fmìsì, keÀcee@ef[ìer ì^sef[bie Fl³eeoer He³ee&³e iegbleJeCegkeÀermeeþer GHeueyOe 
Demeu³eeves ye@bkeÀebleerue CASA þsJeer keÀceer Peeu³ee Deensle.

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceebvegmeej yeBkesÀleerue þsJeeRvee efJec³ee®es mebj#eCe Demeles. yeBkesÀves 
meHìWyej 2013 He³e¥le DICGC keÀ[s efJec³ee®ee nHlee Yejuesuee Deens. 

keÀpes& ë

DenJeeue Je<ee&le keÀpe& J³eJenej 29… cnCepes    760.59 keÀesìeRveer Jee{uee 
Deens. ieleJe<eea keÀpe& Je þsJeeR®es 60.76… Demeuesues He´ceeCe DenJeeue Je<ee&le 
64.06… Peeues Deens.

keÀpe& efJe<e³ekeÀ efveCe&³e ³eesi³e HeOoleerves IesC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves keÀefceìer HeOoleer®ee 
DeJeuebye kesÀuee Deens. l³ee®eHe´ceeCes Debleie&le efJeYeeieeleHexÀ keÀpe& He´keÀjCeeb®eer ³eesi³e 
leer íeveveer keÀjÀve keÀpe& cebpegjer He´efke´À³ee megueYe keÀjC³ee®ee He´³elve meelel³eeves nesle 
Demelees. yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀpee&b®ee opee& Gllece jeKeC³eemeeþer efJeefJeOe MeeKeeb®³ee 
ceeO³eceeletve nesle DemeCeeN³ee keÀpe& HegjJeþe Je keÀpe& HesÀ[eryeeyele meelel³eeves 
HeeþHegjeJee keÀjCeeje efJeMes<e keÀ#e yeBkesÀves mLeeHeve kesÀuee Deens.

yeBefkebÀie #es$eeleerue ceeHeob[evegmeej yeBkesÀ®eer keÀpe& ceeveebkeÀvee®eer mJeleb$e HeOole Deens. 
³ee HeOoleer®ee JeeHej He´ecegK³eeves keÀpe& peesKeerce þjJeC³eemeeþer kesÀuee peelees. 
yeBkesÀ®³ee HeleceeveebkeÀve HeOoleerleerue HeejoMe&keÀlescegUs DeeHeu³ee keÀpee&®ee opee& 
megOeejC³eemeeþer ceole efceUles.

keÀpee&®ee leHeMeerue KeeueerueHe´ceeCes

keÀpe& Jemegueer®³ee efJeefJeOe Ghee³e ³eespeveeb®eer keÀeìskeÀesj DebceueyepeeJeCeer keÀjÀvener 
peeieeflekeÀ efmLeleer®ee DeeHeu³ee Keelesoejeb®³ee J³eJenejeJej efJeHeefjle HeefjCeece 
nesTve DeveglHeeefole keÀpe& keÀener He´ceeCeele Jee{ueer Deensle. l³ee®ee leHeMeerue 
KeeueerueHe´ceeCes ë

leLeeefHe ner leelkeÀeefuekeÀ efmLeleer Demetve Heg{erue DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le ³eeceO³es megOeejCee 
DeHesef#ele Deens. 

 
31.03.2013 31.03.2012 … Jee{ / IeìleHeMeerue

SketÀCe Guee{eue 8708.93 6985.15 24.68

þsJeer 5308.16 4344.97 22.17

keÀpes& 3400.77 2640.18 28.81

{esyeU veHeÀe 113.01 104.89 7.74

efveJJeU veHeÀe 74.99 60.09 24.80

mJeefveOeer 581.04 496.11 17.12

{esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpes& 3.32 … 2.63 … 0.69

efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpes& 0 0 0

Hegbpeer He³ee&Hlelee 13.48… 15.03… (10.31)

(    keÀesìerceO³es )

(    keÀesìerceO³es )

þsJeer®ee He´keÀej              2012-13                      …             2011-12                    …

®eeuet 288.04 5.42 261.27 6.01

ye®ele 1034.92 19.50 917.05 21.11

cegole 3985.20 75.08 3166.65 72.88

SketÀCe 5308.16 100.00 4344.97 100.00

keÀpe& He´keÀej 2012-13 … 2011-12             …

cegole keÀpe&s 1802.91 53.01 1483.51 56.19

meermeer/Dees[er/Dee³eyeerHeer/Deesyeer[er 1597.86 46.99 1156.67 43.81

SketÀCe 3400.77 100.00 2640.18 100.00

(    keÀesìerceO³es )

(    keÀesìerceO³es )

leHeMeerue 2012-13 … 2011-12 …

{esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpes& 112.80 3.32 69.53 2.63

efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpes&
(meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®³ee ceev³elesvegmeej)

SketÀCe keÀpes& 3400.77  2640.18  

0 0 0 0
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efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efveoxMeevegmeej keÀener mebYeeJ³e keÀpe& Keel³eebceO³es keÀpee&®eer 
Hegvej&®evee Je meO³ee®³ee DeìeRceO³es keÀener yeoue keÀjC³ee®eer cegYee yeBkeÀebvee Demeles. 
lemes®e leejCee®³ee yeoueuesu³ee cetu³eevegmeej keÀener lejletoer keÀjeJ³ee ueeieleele. 
Hegvej&®evee kesÀuesu³ee Keel³ee®eer DeekeÀ[sJeejer He´efmeOo keÀjeJeer ueeieles.

meve 2011-12 ³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves SketÀCe   55.48 keÀesìer 
efMeuuekeÀ Demeuesu³ee 6 keÀpe& Keel³eeb®eer Hegvej&®evee kesÀueer nesleer. lemes®e l³eeb®eer 
mebHetCe& lejletoner keÀjC³eele Deeuesueer Deens. n³ee meboYee&leerue GuuesKe keÀjCes iesu³ee 
Je<eer&®³ee DenJeeueele DeveJeOeeveeves jentve iesues. l³eeyeÎue Deecner efoueefiejer J³ekeÌle 
keÀjlees.

DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2011-12 Je 2012-13 ceO³es Hegvej&®evee kesÀuesu³ee 
Keel³eeb®ee leHeMeerue Heeve veb. 54 Jej GHeueyOe Deens.

iegbleJeCetkeÀ ë 

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀ®eer SketÀCe iegbleJeCetkeÀ   1820.22 keÀesìer Deens. ner Jee{ 
ieleJe<eer&®³ee   1622.57 keÀesìerb®³ee leguevesle 12.18… Deens. DenJeeue 
meeueele efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efvekeÀ<eebvegmeej jesKelee Je iegbleJeCetkeÀ ³eeb®es ³eesi³e He´ceeCe 
lemes®e vee@ve Smed.Sued.Deej iegbleJeCegkeÀer®es He´ceeCe ³eesi³e HeeleUerJej jeKeues Deens. 

iegbleJeCegkeÀerJejerue HejleeJee Je J³eepeoj ³eeb®ee ³eesi³e lees leeUcesU Ieeuetve yeBkesÀves 
DeeHeues iegbleJeCetkeÀ OeesjCe jeyeefJeues Deens. iegbleJeCegkeÀerJejerue HejleeJ³eeceO³es 
nesCeeN³ee ®e{Gleejeb®eer peesKeerce yeBkesÀves OeesjCeelcekeÀefjl³ee neleeUueer Deens. J³eepe 
ojeleerue ®e{Gleejeb®ee ³eesi³e lees HeÀe³eoe keÀjÀve IesC³ee®es ueJeef®ekeÀ OeesjCe 
þsJeu³eeves iegbleJeCegkeÀerJejerue HejleeJ³ee®ee oj ®eebieuee jeKeC³eele yeBkesÀuee ³eMe 
Deeues Deens. l³eecegUs þsJeeR®³ee J³eepeoje®eer mejemejer peemle Demetvener efveJJeU 
J³eepee®³ee GlHevvee®es He´ceeCe ®eebieues jeKelee Deeues Deens. yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe 
iegbleJeCegkeÀer®es cetu³e DenJeeue Je<ee&le 21.15 keÀesìeRveer Jee{ues Deens. 

Deeblejje<ì^er³e J³eJemee³e ë

efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves efouesu³ee efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJeneje®³ee HejJeeveieer Debleie&le 19 
peguew 2010 Heemetve yeBkeÀ DeefOeke=Àle [eruej cnCetve keÀece keÀjle Deens. meO³ee 

yeBkesÀ®es `De` ÞesCeer®es SkeÀ keWÀê cegK³e keÀe³ee&ue³eele Demetve `ye` ÞesCeer®es keWÀê 
Devegke´Àces veewHee[e-þeCes, DebOesjer, veeefMekeÀ Je HegCes ³esLes keÀe³e&jle Deens. DenJeeue 
Je<ee&le Deeblejje<ì^er³e J³eJemee³e efJeYeeieeves SketÀCe   1202.38 keÀesìeR®ee 
J³eJenej kesÀuee Deens Je   5.73 keÀesìer FlekeÀe efveJJeU veHeÀe efceUefJeuee Deens. 
³ee meboYee&leerue DeeblejyeBkeÀ J³eJenej    1050 keÀesìer FlekeÀe Peeuee Deens. 

ieleJe<eea®³ee leguevesle J³eJenejeleerue SketÀCe Jee{ 48… Deens. `De` ÞesCeer®³ee 
keWÀêeceOetve DeeblejyeBkeÀ J³eJenej lemes®e Dee³eele efve³ee&le efJe<e³ekeÀ J³eJenej kesÀues 

peeleele. veeefMekeÀ, DebOesjer, veewHee[e Je HegCes ³ee `ye` ÞesCeer®³ee keWÀêeceOetve meJe& 

 

jÀ.

He´keÀej®³ee Dee³eele efve³ee&leer®³ee megefJeOee Keelesoejebvee yeBkeÀ HegjJele Deens. 
Heefnu³ee®e Je<ee&le ³ee meJe& keWÀêebceOetve meJe& He´keÀej®³ee Dee³eele efve³ee&leer®³ee megefJeOee 
Keelesoejebvee yeBkeÀ HegjJele Deens. Heefnu³ee®e Je<ee&le ³ee meJe& keWÀêebveer DeefleMe³e 

ue#eCeer³e keÀeceefiejer kesÀueer Deens. ̀ keÀ` ÞesCeer®³ee SketÀCe 13 keWÀo´ebceOetve HejosMeer 
®eueveefJe<e³ekeÀ J³eJenej kesÀues peeleele, p³ee®ee ueeYe efJeosMeer menueeruee peeCeejs Je 
J³eJemeeef³ekeÀ efve³eefceleHeCes Iesle Deensle.

iesu³ee keÀener DeeþJe[³eele DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej, Flej meJe& ®eueveeb®³ee leguevesle melele 
JeOeejle Deens, keÀejCe HesÀ[jue efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ DeeefLe&keÀ megueYeerkeÀjCe OeesjCe ceeies 
IesC³ee®eer MekeÌ³elee Deens. ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue Jee{le peeCeeN³ee $egìeRcegUs DeeefCe 
HeleceeveebkeÀve mebmLeebveer Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®es ceeveebkeÀve keÀceer keÀjC³ee®eer leekeÀero 
efou³eeves Yeejleer³e jÀHe³ee [e@uej®³ee leguevesle melele Iemejle Deens. meO³ee®ee 
efJeefvece³e oj  56.30 les  56.80 FlekeÀe Deens. jÀHe³ee®eer IemejCe 
LeebyeJeC³eemeeþer mejkeÀejves DeveskeÀ Ghee³e ³eespeues Deensle. Lesì HejkeÀer³e 
iegbleJeCegkeÀeruee ®eeuevee, HejkeÀer³e efJelleer³e mebmLeeb®³ee iegbleJeCegkeÀerJejerue meJeueleer, 
ye@uevme Dee@HeÀ HesceWìceOeerue leHeÀeJele keÀceer keÀjC³eemeeþer meesves Dee³eeleerJej efveye¥Oe 
DeeefCe DeeblejyeBkeÀ J³eJenejele Lesì nmle#esHe efjPeJn& yeBkeÀsves ³eespeues Deens. lejerner 
J³eeHeej DeeefCe ®eeuet Keel³eeJejerue letì peesHe³e¥le peemle Deens leesHe³e¥le efJeefvece³e 
ojeJej Heg{erue keÀener ceefnves leeCe jneCeej®e Deens.

meO³ee yeBkeÀ DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej, ³egjes, HeeTb[, pe@Heefvepe ³esve, Dee@mì^sefue³eve [e@uej, 
efojece Je efmJeme He´BÀkeÀ DeMee meele ®eueveele J³eJenej keÀjle Deens. mebHetCe& 
peieYejeleerue 80 Hes#ee peemle yeBkeÀebMeer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ mebyebOe yeBkesÀves He´mLeeefHele 
kesÀues Deensle. DenJeeue Je<ee&le Dee³eele HeleHe$e, yee³eme& ke´sÀ[erì, HejkeÀer³e ®eueveele 
keÀpe& Je HejkeÀer³e ®eueveele efve³ee&le keÀpe& HegjJeþe DeMee DeveskeÀ megefJeOee Keelesoejebvee 
GheueyOe keÀjÀve efou³ee Deensle. ³ee®e keÀeueeJeOeerceO³es yeBkeÀves DeefveJeemeer 
Yeejleer³eeb®³ee þsJeer   20 keÀesìeRntve DeefOekeÀ efceUefJeu³ee Deensle. veefpekeÀ®³ee 
YeefJe<³ekeÀeUele HejkeÀer³e ®eueveeleerue He´erHes[ [sefyeì keÀe[& mesJee megjÀ keÀjC³ee®ee 
yeBkesÀ®ee efJe®eej Deens. lemes®e keÀener cenlJee®³ee GÐeesiekeWÀêele efJeosMe efJeefvece³e mesJee 
osC³ee®ee efJe®eej Deens. ³esl³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le efmebieeHetj [e@uej Je keÀ@vesef[³eve [e@uej 
³ee oesve ®eueveele yeBkeÀ mesJee osCeej Deens.

veHeÀe ë

leerJe´ mHeOee& Je keÀþerCe DeeefLe&keÀ JeeleeJejCeelener yeBkesÀves   74.99 keÀesìeR®ee 
efveJJeU veHeÀe 2012-13 ceO³es efceUefJeuee Deens. DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves 
24.80…  FlekeÀer Jee{ efveJJeU veHeÌ³eele kesÀueer Deens.

keÀj Je lejletoerHetJeer&®ee veHeÀe 113.01 104.89

keÀj Je lejletoerveblej®ee veHeÀe 74.99 60.09

leHeMeerue 2012-13 2011-12

(    keÀesìerceO³es )
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yeBkesÀ®ee mejemejer J³eepeoj HejleeJee yeBefkebÀie #es$eeceO³es vesnceerHe´ceeCes Glke=À<ì 
jeefnuee Deens. DenJeeue meeueer ns He´ceeCe 1.31… Deens.

ueeYeebMe ë

YeeieOeejkeÀebvee ³eesi³e HejleeJee osle Demeleevee®e veHeÌ³ee®eer Hegve&iegbleJeCetkeÀ keÀjÀve 
Hegbpeer He³ee&Hlelee He´ceeCe me#ece jeKeCes ns yeBkesÀ®es OeesjCe jeKeues Deens. l³eevegmeej meve 
2012-13 ceO³es 15… ueeYeebMee®eer efMeHeÀejme jeKeleevee meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ueme Deevebo nesle Deens.

veHeÀe efJeYeeieCeer meve 2012-13 ë

meYeemeoebvee jeKeerJe efveOeer DeeefCe Flej iebieepeUer ³eeb®es ³eesi³e Je mel³e cetu³eebkeÀve 
mecepeeJes cnCetve n³ee Je<eea®eer veHeÀe efJeYeeieCeer n³ee®e Je<eea®³ee leeUsyeboele DebleYet&le 
kesÀueer Demetve l³eeme meYeemeoeb®eer cebpegjer DeHesef#ele Deens.

leHeMeerueJeej efJeYeeieCeer He=<þ ke´À. 36 Jej osC³eele Deeueer Deens.

efJemleej ë

yeBkesÀ®³ee ìerpesSmedyeer neTme, JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes ³ee cegK³e keÀe³ee&ue³ee®es GodIeeìve 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®es keÀe³e&HeeuekeÀ efveoxMekeÀ cee. Þeer. Smed. keÀjÀHHeemeeceer ³eeb®³ee 
MegYenmles 1.12.2012 jespeer Peeues. yeBkesÀves vegkeÀlee®e iegpejeLe jep³eele 
He´JesMe keÀjÀve Denceoeyeeo, ye[esoe Je megjle ³ee efþkeÀeCeer MeeKee megjÀ kesÀu³ee 
Deensle.

yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe MeeKeeb®ee efJemleej 82 MeeKeebJej Hees®euee Deens Je yeBkesÀ®³ee 
He´l³eskeÀer 3 MeeKee ieesJee Je iegpejeLe DeeefCe oesve MeeKee keÀvee&ìkeÀ jep³eele keÀe³e&jle 
Deensle.

peesKeerce J³eJemLeeHeve ë

efJelleer³e #es$eele keÀece keÀjleevee yeBkesÀuee efJeefJeOe He´keÀej®³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je Flej 
peesKeceeRvee meeceesjs peeJes ueeieles. keÀpe& efJelejCe, J³eepeoj, efJeosMe efJeefvece³e, 
jesKelee, meceYeeie cetu³e, Jemletbb®³ee efkebÀceleer, keÀe³eos efJe<e³ekeÀ efve³eecekeÀeb®eer 
Hetle&lee, He´efle<þe Je keÀe³ee&lcekeÀ peesKeerce DeMee efJeefJeOe He´keÀej®³ee peesKeceerrb®es 
J³eJemLeeHeve yeBkeÀ keÀjle Demeles. 

³ee meJe& peesKeceer HejmHejeJeuebyeer Demeleele Je keÀesCel³eener SkeÀe YeeieeJej Peeuesuee 
yeoue Flej peesKeceeRJejner HeefjCeece keÀjle Demelees. DeeefLe&keÀ J³eJemee³e keÀjleevee 
yeBkesÀves meJe& peesKeceeR®es J³eJemLeeHeve Je l³eeb®³ee HeefjCeeceeb®es ieebYeer³e& keÀceer 
keÀjC³eeuee melele He´eOeev³e efoues Deens.

meJe& He´keÀej®³ee peesKeceerb®es J³eJemLeeHeve Je neleeUCeer keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves peesKeerce 
J³eJemLeeHeve OeesjCe DeeKeuesues Deens. yeBkeÀ Iesle Demeuesu³ee J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 

 
peesKeceeR®es efJeMues<eCe, ceeHeve, efve³eceve Je efve³eb$eCe keÀjC³eemeeþer SkeÀ megefveefM®ele 
keÀe³e&He´Ceeueer DeJeuebyeuesueer Deens.

Hegbpeer He³ee&Hlelee ë

iesueer keÀener Je<ex yeBkesÀ®ee J³eJemee³e meelel³eeves Jee{le Deens. yeBkesÀ®eer keÀpex Je 
iegbleJeCetkeÀner Jee{le Deens. ³ee oesvnerceO³es nesle Demeuesu³ee Jee{ercegUs peesKeerce³egkeÌle 
keÀpee&®es He´ceeCener Jee{ues Deens. efJemleejerkeÀjCee®³ee OeesjCeecegUs veJeerve MeeKeebJej 
nesCeeje Yeeb[Jeueer Ke®e&ner Jee{le Deens. HeefjCeeceer ieleJe<eea®³ee 15.03…
Demeuesueer Hegbpeer He³ee&Hlelee, DenJeeue meeueele 13.48… FlekeÀer Peeueer Deens. 
Hegbpeer He³ee&Hleles®es He´ceeCe DeefOekeÀ me#ece keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkeÀ oerIe&keÀeueerve cegoleþsJeer 
mJeerkeÀejC³eemeeþer efjPeJn& yeBkesÀkeÀ[s HejJeeveieer ceeieCeej Deens. ³ee þsJeer Tier-II 
Yeeb[Jeue cnCetve Hegbpeer He³ee&Hlelesmeeþer Hee$e þjles. ³eecegUs meve 2013-14 ceO³es 
yeBkesÀ®eer Hegbpeer He³ee&Hlelee 14… ®³ee Jej jenerue.

ceeveJeer mebmeeOeve ë

³ee Debleie&le keÀce&®eeN³eeb®eer Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ, meebefIekeÀ Je mebmLeelcekeÀ keÀewMeu³es, #ecelee 
Je %eeve ³eeb®ee efJekeÀeme keÀjC³ee®eer SkeÀ keÀe³e&He´Ceeueer iejpes®eer Demeles. me#ece 
mebmLee keÀce&®eeN³eebvee Ie[JeC³eemeeþer efJeefJeOe He´efMe#eCeebJej Yej osle Demeles. 
l³eecegUs keÀce&®eejer Je mebmLee oesIesner ie´enkeÀ mesJes®es GÎer<ì meeO³e keÀjÀ MekeÀleele.

efJeefJeOe efJe<e³eebJej meJe& mlejeJejerue keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer He´efMe#eCee®es Dee³eespeve ye@bkeÀ 
keÀjle Demeles. meve 2012-13 ceO³es 64 He´efMe#eCe keÀe³e&ke´ÀceeÜejs 1385 
keÀce&®eeN³eebvee SketÀCe 33,373 ceeveJeer leemeeb®es He´efMe#eCe efoues iesues. ³eebceO³es 
ie´enkeÀ mesJee, efJeosMe efJeefvece³e, J³eJemee³e, keÀpe& efve³eceve, keÀpe& cetu³eebkeÀve, 
keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie, vesle=lJe iegCe efJekeÀeme Fl³eeoer efJe<e³eebJej He´efMe#eCe efoues iesues.

meO³ee®³ee  mHeOee&lcekeÀ efmLeleerceO³es keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es %eeveie´nCe Je l³ee®es DeeoeveHe´oeve 

cenlJee®es nesle Deens. meJe& He´efMe#eCe keÀe³e&ke´Àceeleerue meeefnl³e Je meeojerkeÀjCe ̀ F&- 

He´efMe#eCe` ³ee meojebleie&le yeBkesÀ®³ee Debleie&le mebkesÀle mLeUeJej meJee¥®³ee 
meboYee&meeþer GHeueyOe Deens.

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves ceeveJe mebmeeOeve, veJeerve vesceCegkeÀe, YeefJe<³ekeÀeueerve lejlegoer, 
vesle=lJe iegCe Deeoerbmeeþer DeveskeÀ GHeke´Àce jeyeefJeues Deensle. meve 2012-13 
DeeefCe 2013-14 ³ee Je<ee¥meeþer ceeveJe mebmeeOevee®³ee efve³eespeveele meO³ee®³ee 
Je YeefJe<³eeleerue efJemleej ³eespeveeb®³ee DebceueyepeeJeCeerJej Yej efouee Deens. 

DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eeve ë

meO³ee ìerpesSmedyeerkeÀ[s Glke=À<ì leb$e%eeve He´Ceeueer GHeueyOe Deens. ie´enkeÀebvee 
mees³eermkeÀj Je megKeo mesJee HegjJeC³eemeeþer®e leb$e%eevee®ee JeeHej yeBkeÀ keÀjle Demeles. 
Keelesoejebvee J³eefkeÌleiele, ieefleceeve Je Del³euHe MegukeÀele leb$eeefOeef<þle mesJee 
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HegjefJeC³eele yeBkesÀves ue#eCeer³e He´ieleer kesÀueer Deens. iesu³ee oesve oMekeÀebceO³es ceeefnleer 
leb$e%eeveeves peieeuee KetHe peJeU DeeCeues Deens. yeBkesÀves DeeHeu³ee Keelesoejebvee 

24x7 GHeueyOe DemeCeeN³ee DeveskeÀ F& yeBefkebÀie mesJee GHeueyOe keÀjÀve efou³ee 
Deensle. leb$e%eevee®³ee JeeHeje®es He´ceeCe FlekesÀ Jee{ues Deens keÀer l³eeefMeJee³e peesKeerce 
efJejefnle yeBefkebÀie mesJee HegjefJeCes DeMekeÌ³e Deens. lemes kesÀu³eeme yeBkesÀuee keÀener 
He´keÀej®³ee keÀe³ee&lcekeÀ peesKeceeRvee leeW[ ÐeeJes ueeiesue.

ns meJe& ue#eele IesTve 22 cee®e& 2013 jespeer yeBkesÀves DeeHeu³ee meJe& keÀe³e&He´Ceeueer  
ISO/IEC 27001:2005 vegmeej He´ceeefCele keÀjÀve Iesleueer 

Deensle. ISO/IEC 27001:2005 ns He´ceeCeHe$e yeBkesÀuee `ceeefnleer megj#ee 

J³eJemLeeHeve HeOoleer` ³ee leb$e%eeveeJej DeeOeeefjle keÀeceemebyebOeer He´oeve keÀjC³eele 
Deeues Deens. l³eeceO³es Keeueerue He´CeeueeR®ee DebleYee&Je Deens.

·þeCes ³esLeerue [eìe meWìj mesJee

·HegCes ³esLeerue DeeHelkeÀeueerve He³ee&³e J³eJemLee

·keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie meesu³etMeve (CBS) Je Flej yeBkeÀebvee ceeefnleer leb$e%eeve 
keÀe³e&He´Ceeueer mesJee HegjJeCeejer ³eb$eCee

keÌueeefmekeÀ DeeefCe Hue@efìvece DeMee oesve HeOoleer®es efJnpee [sefyeì keÀe[& yeBkeÀ 
Keelesoejebvee GHeueyOe keÀjÀve osle Demeles. ³ee keÀe[e&®ee JeeHej kesÀJeU jesKe 
keÀe{C³eemeeþer vemetve efJeefJeOe DeemLeeHeveebceO³es Kejsoer keÀjCes, F& keÀe@ceme&, Dee@ve 
ueeF&ve Kejsoer Je eflekeÀerì yegkeÀeRiemeeþer keÀjlee ³esles. 

DenJeeue Je<ee&le yeBkesÀves NPCI ®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves Fbìj yeBkeÀ ceesyeeF&ue HesceWì 
HeOoleer®ee JeeHej keÀjC³ee®eer megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀjÀve efoueer Deens. ìerpesSmedyeer 
ceesyeeF&ue yeBefkebÀie mesJesÜejs Keelesoej Keel³eeJejerue efMeuuekeÀ leHeemeCes, 
Keel³eeJejerue J³eJenej yeIeCes, mìsìceWìdme Je Flej yeBkeÀeble jkeÌkeÀce nmleebleefjle 
keÀjCes Fl³eeoer J³eJenej keÀjÀ MekeÀleele.

ìerpesSmedyeer ceesyeeF&ue yeBefkebÀie mesJesÜejs Keelesoej ceneefJelejCe Je efjuee³evme Svepeea 
³eeb®eer efyeume, ceesyeeF&ue Je DTH Recharge Je efmevescee®eer eflekeÀerìs Kejsoer keÀjÀ 
MekeÀleele. ie´enkeÀebvee efceUCeeN³ee efJeefJeOe meyeefme[er Lesì Keel³eele pecee nesC³eemeeþer 
DeeOeej mesJee yeBkesÀle GHeueyOe Deens. NPCI Üejs DeeOeej He´CeeueerMeer yeBefkebÀie keÀesDej 
He´Ceeueer ³eMemJeerefjl³ee mebueive Peeueer Deens. keÀener efJeefMe<ì MeeKeebceO³es 
yemeefJeuesu³ee KIOSK Üejs Keelesoej DeeHeues HeemeyegkeÀ íeHetve IesT MekeÀlees. ner 
mesJee efoJemeje$e GHeueyOe Deens.

·veewHee[e, þeCes Je cenelceeveiej, veeefMekeÀ ³ee MeeKeebceO³es jesKe mJeerke=Àleer 
³eb$eCee yeBkesÀves GHeueyOe keÀjÀve efou³ee Deensle. jesKe jkeÌkeÀce YejC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves 
Iesleuesuee ne veJeerve Heg{ekeÀej Deens. ³ee meboYee&leerue meJe& Debleie&le j®eveeyeoue 
DenJeeue Je<ee&le HetCe& keÀjC³eele Deeues Deensle.

·Keelesoejeb®³ee mees³eermeeþer efJeefJeOeue#eer mesJee HegjJeCeejer KIOSK yeBkesÀves 

(RVA He´ceeefCele) 

GHeueyOe keÀjÀve efoues Deens. mebHetCe& Je<e&Yej ³ee KIOSK ejs Keelesoej HeemeyegkeÀ 
efHe´ìeRie, Keeles Gleeje efHe´ìeRie, ®eskeÀ YejCee F. J³eJenej keÀjÀ MekeÀleele. 

leb$e%eevee®ee mebHetCe& mJeerkeÀej keÀjleevee J³eJemee³eeleerue meelel³e jeKeCes 
Del³eeJeM³ekeÀ Demeles. n³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves Je<ee&letve oesveoe DeeHelkeÀeueerve mesJes®eer 
³eMemJeer meb®eueve keÀjÀve DeKeb[ mesJes®eer #ecelee leHeemeueer Deens.

leb$e%eeve efJeYeeiee®³ee Flej J³eJemee³eebceO³es yeBkesÀves Debleie&le AML He´Ceeueer meJe& 
MeeKeebceO³es Je Dev³e 12 menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebceO³es keÀe³ee&efvJele kesÀueer Deens. Flej 6 
yeBkeÀebvee leb$e%eeve meuuee, 7 ye@bkeÀebvee [eìe meWìj/DeeHelkeÀeueerve He³ee&³eer J³eJemLee Je 
5 yeBkeÀebvee keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie He´Ceeueer HegjJeueer peele Deens.

efjPeJn& ye@bkesÀ®³ee OeesjCeevegmeej meceeMeesOeve HeOoleerceO³es ®eskeÀ ì^bkesÀMeve HeOole ueeiet 
keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkeÀ ³eesi³e leer le³eejer keÀjle Deens. l³ee®eHe´ceeCes Keelesoejebvee ®eskeÀ 
efkeÌueDejerbie®eer megueYe DeeefCe Jee{erJe megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀjÀve osC³eemeeþer ye@bkeÀ 
mJeleë®eer efkeÌueDejerbie neGÀme FbìjHesÀme (CHI) J³eJemLee keÀe³ee&efvJele keÀjerle Deens. 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efveoxMeevegmeej ef®eHe (CHIP) #ecelee DemeCeejer, Deeblejje<ì^er³e 
keÀe[&dme Keelesoejebvee GHeueyOe keÀjC³eemeeþer yeBkeÀ le³eejer keÀjle Deens. ³esl³ee Je<ee&le 
yeBkesÀleHexÀ Keelesoej mebyebOe J³eJemLeeHeve, DeeefLe&keÀ meceeJesMe Je efJemleejerle mesJee 
He´Ceeueer Demes DeveskeÀ He´keÀuHe keÀe³ee&efvJele nesCeej Deensle p³eecegUs yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³e 
yengDee³eeceer nesCeej Deens.

J³eJemee³ee®³ee veJeerve Jeeìe ë

efjPeJn&  yeBkesÀ®es  keÀe³e&HeeuekeÀ  efveoxMekeÀ  cee. Þeer. Smed. keÀjÀHHeemeeceer ³eeb®³ee nmles 

efo. 1 ef[meWyej 2012 jespeer ̀ DeeOeej mebueive ye®ele Keeles` GIe[C³ee®eer megefJeOee 
megjÀ kesÀueer Deens. peemleerle peemleer ueeskeÀebvee DeeefLe&keÀ meceeJesMee®ee HeÀe³eoe osTve 
yeBefkebÀie mesJee HegjJeC³eemeeþer yeBkesÀves ns veJeerve HeeTue G®eueues Deens. DeelleeHe³e¥le 
yeBkesÀves DeeOeej mebueive 40,000 ye®ele Keeleer GIe[ueer Deensle. UIDAI keÀ[s 
DeMeer Keeleer GIe[C³eemeeþer mebueive Demeuesueer menkeÀej #es$eeleerue ìerpesSmedyeer ner 
Heefnueer yeBkeÀ Deens.

J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ DevegMeemeve ë

Keelesoejeb®ee efJeMJeeme ne yeBkesÀ®³ee DeefmleÊJee®ee Hee³ee Deens. me#ece J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
DevegMeemeve Demeu³eecegUs ne efJeMJeeme Je=efOobiele nesle Demeleevee®e keÀecekeÀepener 
³eesi³e HeOoleerves nesle Deens. J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ DevegMeemeve He´Ceeueer keÀe³ee&efvJele keÀjleevee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee GefÎ<ìeuee Je leer meeO³e keÀjC³ee®³ee HeOoleeruee HetjkeÀ DemeCeejer Debleie&le 
efve³eceve He´Ceeueer keWÀêmLeeveer Deens. G®®e opee&®eer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ DevegMeemeve HeOole 
mJeerkeÀejCes Je l³ee®es Heeueve keÀjCes ³eemeeþer yeb@keÀ yeebOeerue Deens. YeeieOeejkeÀeb®eer 
cetu³eJe=Ooer, Glke=À<ì keÀe³e&HeOoleer Je J³eJenejeleerue HeejoMe&keÀlee ³eeb®ee mecevJe³e 
meeOeC³eeJej®e He´ecegK³eeves yeBkesÀ®ee Yej Deens. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee efJeefJeOe 
meefcel³eebJoejs J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ DevegMeemeve Je l³eeb®ee opee& ³eeb®es meelel³eeves efve³eceve 

Ü
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nesle Demeles.

meom³e mebK³ee ë

ieleJe<eea®³ee 40921 ³ee meom³e mebK³es®³ee leguevesle 31.03.2013 jespeer 
yeBkesÀ®eer meom³e mebK³ee 46647 FlekeÀer Deens. 

uesKeeHejer#ekeÀeb®eer vesceCetkeÀ ë

meve 2013 - 14  ³ee  DeeefLe&keÀ  Je<ee&meeþer  JewOeeefvekeÀ  uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ  cnCetve 
ces. ieesKeues Je meeþs, ®eeì&[& DekeÀeTbìbìdme ³eeb®eer efve³egkeÌleer keÀjC³eeyeeyele meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[U  efMeHeÀejme  keÀjle Deens. JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#eCe cnCetve keÀece keÀjC³eeme 
ces. ieesKeues DeeefCe meeþs ³eebveer mebceleer efoueer Deens. ³ee vesceCegkeÀeryeeyele®ee þjeJe 
efJe<e³e Heef$ekesÀJejerue efJe<e³e ke´À. 4 DevJe³es ceeb[C³eele Deeuee Deens.

meeceeefpekeÀ peyeeyeoejer ë

J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ mlejeJej He´YeeJeer keÀeceefiejer keÀjle Demeleevee®e ìerpesSmedyeerves DeeHeues 
meeceeefpekeÀ Gllejoeef³elJe mJeerkeÀejues Deens Je DeeHeu³ee efveJJeU veHeÌ³eeleerue keÀener 
Yeeie meeceeefpekeÀ mebmLeebvee Devegoeve jÀHeeves osle Deens. He³ee&JejCe mebyebOeeleerue keÀener 
meeceeefpekeÀ HewuetbMeer yeBkeÀ mebueive jentve keÀece keÀjle Deens. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2012-
13 ceO³es yeBkesÀves SketÀCe 54 mebmLeebvee   56.60 ueeKe Devegoeve jÀHeeves 
efJelejerle kesÀues Deens. 

HegjmkeÀej ë

yeBkesÀuee `Dee³e.yeer.S. yeBefkebÀie ìskeÀvee@uee@peer De@Jee@[& 2011` Debleie&le Glke=À<ì 
leb$e%eevee®es menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ #es$eeleerue efÜleer³e Heeefjleesef<ekeÀ efceUeuesues Deens, ns veceto 
keÀjleevee ceuee efJeMes<e Deevebo nesle Deens.

JesOe YeefJe<³ee®ee ë

peeieeflekeÀ, DeeefLe&keÀ mlejeJejerue DeefveefM®elelee Je meelel³eeves Jee{le peeCeejer 
efJelleer³e letì ner ³esl³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&leerue He´cegKe DeeJneves DemeCeej Deensle. DeeHeueer 
Debleie&le me#ecelee  DeeefCe MeeKee efJemleej ³eeb®³ee peesjeJej ³esl³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le 
DeeHeCe Jee{er®ee Jesie keÀe³ece jeKet MeketÀ Demee ceuee efJeMJeeme Deens. ³esl³ee Je<ee&le 
mebOeer®ee HeÀe³eoe Iesle Demeleevee Je DeeJneveebvee meeceesjs peele Demeleevee 
J³eJemee³eJe=×er®ee cegK³e Yej efjìsue #es$eeleerue J³eJemee³e Jee{JeC³eeJej Demesue.

Jee{eruee ®eeuevee osle Demeleevee DeeJneves mJeerkeÀe©ve yeBkeÀ J³eJemee³ee®³ee veJ³ee 
meercee ieeþsue.

Heesìefve³ece ogjÀmleer ë

menkeÀejer meesmee³eìîeeb®es keÀecekeÀepe peemleer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀlesves DeeefCe peesKeerce 
efve³eb$eCe HeOoleerves nesC³ee®³ee GefÎ<ìeves Yeejle mejkeÀejves menkeÀejer meesmee³eìîeeb®³ee 

meboYee&le IeìveeogjÀmleer kesÀueer Deens. l³ee meboYee&leerue og©ml³ee Ieìves®³ee 97 J³ee 
ogjÀmleerDevJe³es Debceueele Deeuesu³ee Deensle. meesmee³eìîeeb®³ee keÀecekeÀepeele 
meYeemeoeb®es meke´Àer³e ³eesieoeve ³ee og©ml³eebJej DeHesef#ele Deens. meesmee³eìîeeb®³ee 
efJeefJeOe GlHeeoveeb®ee Je mesJeeb®ee JeeHej Je Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYesuee GHeefmLeleer 
³eeceO³es meYeemeoeb®ee meefke´À³e menYeeie DeHesef#ele Deens. menkeÀej#es$e peemle 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀlesves Je ueeskeÀMeener HeOoleerves ®eeueJetve ³ee ®eUJeUeruee peemle me#ece 
keÀjC³eemeeþer ³ee ogjÀml³eeb®ee GHe³eesie nesCeej Deens.

GhejeskeÌle meboYee&le meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U Heesìefve³eceebceO³es og©ml³ee He´mleeefJele keÀjle 
Deens.

Þe×ebpeueer ë

DenJeeue Je<ee&le efveOeve HeeJeuesues meYeemeo, Keelesoej Je efnleef®eblekeÀ ³eebvee efJevece´ 
Þe×ebpeueer.  

$eÝCeefveoxMe ë

yeBkesÀJej oeKeefJeuesu³ee efJeMJeemeeHe´leer Je meJee¥ieerCe He´ieleeruee meowJe Heeefþbyee osCeeN³ee 
YeeieOeejkeÀeb®ee ceer $eÝCeer Deens. yeBkesÀ®³ee He´ieleerceO³es meelel³eeves menkeÀe³e& keÀjCeeN³ee 
Keelesoejeb®³ee He´leer ceer ke=Àle%elee J³ekeÌle keÀjlees.

yeBkesÀ®³ee He´ieleermeeþer melele keÀe³e&jle DemeCeeN³ee meJe& keÀce&®eejer Jeiee&®es meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Ue®³ee Jeleerves ceer ceveëHetJe&keÀ DeefYevebove keÀjlees. 

Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ, keWÀêer³e menkeÀej Keeles, efouueer, menkeÀej Keeles, ceneje<ì^ 
jep³e ³eeb®³ee JesUesJesUer efceUCeeN³ee ceeie&oMe&veeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U l³eeb®es 
ke=Àle%e Deens.

yeBkesÀ®es Debleie&le uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ, JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ Je keÀe³eosMeerj meuueeieej 
³eeb®³ee ceeie&oMe&vee®ee yeBkesÀuee melele HeÀe³eoe Peeuesuee Deens. Deecner l³eeb®es Del³eble 
DeeYeejer Deenesle.

yeBkesÀuee meelel³eeves He´ieleerHeLeeJej Deie´smej þsJeC³eemeeþer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueleerue 
meYeemeoebveer efouesu³ee JesUs®³ee Je ceeie&oMe&vee®³ee yengcetu³e ³eesieoevee®ee ceer 
ke=Àle%eleeHetJe&keÀ GuuesKe keÀjlees.

DeeHeuee,

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee Jeleerves,

efJe. De. JewMebHee³eve
DeO³e#e
efoë 22.04.2013
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Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me great pleasure in 
ndwelcoming you all to the 42  Annual General Meeting of the 

Bank. It is a privilege to address this august gathering and 

highlight the performance of your Bank during the financial year 

2012-13. At the outset, I express my gratitude to you all for your 

continued support and patronage. 

The fiscal year gone by was challenging for the Bank to sustain 

both business growth and profitability, as the economy unlike 

previous years has not been able to sustain the growth 

momentum.  

Before I present the highlights of your Bank's performance 

during the financial year 2012-13, it would not be out of place to 

share with you briefly the details of the global and domestic 

economic environment that prevailed during the year as these 

had strong implications for the Banking sector's performance. 

The Global Economic Scenario

During the last year global financial market conditions have 

improved but global economic activity has weakened. On the 

domestic front too, growth has decelerated significantly, even as 

inflation remains at a level which is not conducive for sustained 

economic growth. Although, there has been notable softening of 

non food manufactured products inflation, food inflation 

remains high, widening gap between the wholesale price and 

consumer price inflation. 

Global economic developments over the last few months present 

a mixed picture. US GDP estimates for Q4 for 2012 indicate a 

tentative upturn on the back of improvement in housing and 

payroll employment. However, US macroeconomic prospects 

are clouded by the uncertainty surrounding the temporary 

appropriations and debt ceiling. In the Euro area, plagued by 

contingent risks of political uncertainty and adjustment fatigue, 

GDP fell in consecutive quarters. While some emerging and 

developing economies including China are gradually returning 

to faster growth, activity is slowing in other countries due to 

weak external demand and slack domestic investment. 

International non- fuel commodity prices have softened, but fuel 

prices have remained firm, despite the growth slowdown, 

threatening persisting inflationary pressures, particularly for net 

energy importers. 

The quantitative easing measures adopted by US are likely to be 

withdrawn in the near future as their economy is showing signs 

of recovery. If it happens, the commodity prices which have 

already fallen in past few months may further lose ground. 

Withdrawal of quantitative easing measures may have positive 

impact on inflation in India but at the same time investment of 

Foreign Institutional Investors (FIIs) in the country may also 

come down which ultimately will impact the exchange rate.

Indian Economic Scenario       

Growth of the Indian economy remained at a decade low of 5% 

in 2012-13.Growth in last quarter of 2012-13 rose marginally to 

4.8%, compared with the previous quarter. The fiscal deficit in 

the last fiscal was lower than projected. It stood at 4.89% of 

gross domestic product (GDP) compared with the revised 

estimate of 5.2%.

During last quarter of F.Y. 2012-13, the sectors that showed 

signs of upturn are manufacturing, construction and financial 

services, growing at a higher pace than last quarter. However, 

mining, electricity and community services continued to show 

signs of stress.

Although retail and food inflation are at higher levels, 

Wholesale Price Index (WPI) which remains the major factor for 

the RBI to take interest rate decisions has been consistently 

coming down and presently it is at 4.89%. Responding to the 

falling inflation, the Reserve Bank of India has cut policy 

interest rates by 25 basis points at each of its three reviews in 

2013. Investors and analysts generally expect another cut at its 

next review.

For the financial year 2013-14, Reserve Bank of India has 

projected credit and deposit growth at 15% and 14% 

respectively. Therefore, the liquidity in Indian banking system is 

expected to be under stress in the year also. The RBI may 

conduct Open Market Operations (OMO) in the form of 

Government bonds purchases to support the liquidity in the 

system. 

The Union Budget for 2013-14 has made a firm commitment to 

fiscal consolidation. The gross fiscal deficit/ GDP ratio is 

programmed to decline to 4.8% in 2013-14 and further down to 

3% by 2016-17, in line with the revised road map for fiscal 

consolidation.



With merchandise exports recording positive growth and non oil 

imports contracting, the trade deficit narrowed significantly. For 

the last financial year 2012-13, the trade deficit was higher than 

its level a year ago with adverse implications for the Current 

Account Deficit (CAD), already at record high. Although capital 

inflows, mainly in the form of portfolio investments and debt 

flows, provided adequate financing, the growing vulnerability 

of the external sector to abrupt shifts in sentiment remains a key 

concern according to RBI. 

As per view of RBI, the foremost challenge for returning the 

economy to the high growth trajectory is to revive investment. A 

competitive interest rate is necessary for this, but not sufficient. 

Sufficiency conditions include bridging the supply constraints, 

staying the course of fiscal consolidation, both in terms of 

quantity and quality and improving governance. 

Against the background of the exceptionally adverse 

circumstances outlined above, I must say that the F.Y. 2012-13 

was a good year for TJSB. Notwithstanding the challenging 

conditions, Your Bank again proved its ability to generate 

respectable results during F.Y 2012-13.   

Performance Highlights of the Bank for the financial year 

2012-13:

Your Bank's business mix crossed    8700 crores during 2012-13 

registering a growth of 25%. The current and saving (CASA) 

deposits also crossed    1300 Crores during 2012-13 and the net 

profit of your bank touched milestone of     75 Crores.

Financial Highlights:

Deposit:

Deposit growth across the banking industry has consistently 

been falling in the financial year 2012-13 and could not touch the 

15% mark as projected by RBI for the financial year. Your Bank, 

on the contrary, has recorded growth of 22 % in deposits during 

this period. The composition of deposits is as under:

Indian economy witnessed high interest rate regime and higher 

inflation resulting in shift of deposits under current account and 

saving account to term deposits. Decline in CASA deposits was 

also due to the various opportunities available to the customers 

such as stock market, real estate, commodities, etc.

The deposits of your bank are insured as per the RBI guidelines. 

Accordingly, insurance premium has been paid to DICGC upto 

September 2013.

Advances:

The advances portfolio has increased by   760.59 Crores 

registering growth of 29%. The Credit Deposit Ratio stood at 

64.06% which was 60.76% at the beginning of the year.

The bank has well defined Committee Approach for taking 

credit decisions judiciously. Accordingly, Credit Cell is 

established which comprises of Credit Appraisal Wing. The 

functioning of Credit Cell encompasses judicious processing of 

proposals by following a well defined code of analysis. Bank has 

separate credit monitoring cell through which credit functions 

are closely monitored and followed up on an ongoing basis in co-

ordination with branches and other departments ensuring that 

credit quality is maintained at all times.

The bank has well defined credit rating system in line with 

industry parameters. Rating system is mainly aimed at 

assessment of credit risk. The bank ensures rating of borrower's 

performance based on audited financials on yearly basis. The 

rating system is transparent and gives scope to the borrowers for 

improvement in requisite areas.

The composition of advances is as under:

In spite of these efforts, there are occasions of advance 

becoming non-performing due to external factors affecting the 

business of the borrower.

Type of Deposits     2012-13                    %             2011-12                    %

Current 288.04 5.42 261.27 6.01

Savings 1034.92 19.50 917.05 21.11

Term 3985.20 75.08 3166.65 72.88

Total 5308.16 100.00 4344.97 100.00

(    in Crores)

(    in Crores)

Particulars 2012-13 % 2011-12 %

Gross NPA 112.80 3.32 69.53 2.63

Net NPA (subject to approval of AGM) 0 0 0 0

Total Advances 3400.77  2640.18  

(    in Crores)

Type of Facility           2012-13                  %             2011-12             %

Term Loans 1802.91 53.01 1483.51 56.19

CC/OD/IBP/OBD 1597.86 46.99 1156.67 43.81

Total 3400.77 100.00 2640.18 100.00
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31.03.2013 31.03.2012 % Increase/DecreaseParticulars

Business Mix 8708.93 6985.15 24.68

Deposits 5308.16 4344.97 22.17

Advances 3400.77 2640.18 28.81

Gross Profit 113.01 104.89 7.74

Net Profit 74.99 60.09 24.80

Owned Funds 581.04 496.11 17.12

Gross N.P.A. 3.32 % 2.63 % 0.69

Net N.P.A. 0 0 0

C.R.A.R. 13.48% 15.03% (10.31)

(    in Crores)
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However, this may be temporary phenomenon and would be 

improved during next financial year.

In terms of the Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the Banks are 

allowed to restructure / modify existing terms of sanction of 

potentially viable borrower accounts. As per the guidelines, the 

Banks are advised to make provision for diminution in the Fair 

Value. Also, the Banks are required to disclose statistics of 

restructured accounts.

During Previous Financial Year 2011-12, the bank has 

restructured six borrower accounts having outstanding balance 

of   55.48 Crores, which remained to be reported in the last 

Annual Report. The required provision for diminution in fair 

value   has been done.

The information of the Restructured Advances for F.Y. 2011-12 

and 2012-13 is reported on page no 54. 

We regret the mistake. 

Treasury:

Aggregate investment of your Bank as on March 2013 increased 

to    1820.22 Crores from    1622.57 Crores registering growth 

of 12.18%. Your Bank has maintained adequate CRR and SLR 

as stipulated by RBI during financial year 2012-13. Your Bank 

has also maintained non SLR investment within the prescribed 

limit set by RBI.

Your Bank strategically managed its aggregate interest income 

and return on Investments improved during the year reflecting 

the swift response at operational level in managing the 

Investments. Your Bank strategically minimised the risk of the 

adverse impact of increase in yields on the investment portfolio. 

Your bank also grabbed opportunities of the interest rate 

volatility to generate more income which resulted in improving 

the yield on investment. The higher return on investment gives 

significant positive carry on the cost of deposit which helps your 

bank to post higher net interest income. Your Bank's investment 

portfolio had appreciation of     21.15Crores as on 31.03.2013.

Foreign Exchange Business:

The international Business Division of the bank has become 
thoperational from 19  July 2010, after receiving Authorised 

Dealer Cat - 1 License from RBI.  Presently bank is having A - 

category center at its Corporate Office and B category centres at 

Thane, Nasik, Andheri and Pune. During the year under report 

IBD has done the turnover of   1202.38 Crores, from all its 

centres. IBD has earned net profit of    5.73 Crores during the 

period under report. The interbank dealing turnover during the 

period under report is of around     1050 Crores. The turnover 

has increased by nearly 48 % over last year. At "A" category 

centre, along with the Trade Finance activities, Interbank 

Dealing also takes place. The "B" category centres handle only 

Trade Finance activities. All the centres have shown a 

remarkable performance during the year and right from their 

inception. There are 13 centres working as "C" category who 

handle the money changing business for leisure and business 

tour clients.

In the past several weeks, dollar has become stronger as against 

almost all global currencies due to the likelihood of withdrawal 

of quantitative easing measures adopted by US Federal Reserve. 

Indian rupee also has weakened against dollar because of 

widened Current Account Deficit (CAD) and a warning given by 

rating agencies to India regarding downgrading of sovereign 

rating. Exchange rate at present prevails in the range of 56.30-

56.80. To arrest a fall in exchange rate, Government has taken 

steps to boost investment under FDI / FII by liberalizing 

investment norms and on the other hand, the RBI also has taken 

measures to curb gold import so as to contain the Balance of 

Payment. RBI also is intervening in Forex market to keep the 

exchange rate under control. However, as long as the trade and 

Current Account Deficit remain high, the exchange rate appears 

to remain under pressure in the next months to come.

Presently bank is dealing in 7 major currencies viz. USD, 

EURO, GBP, JPY, AUD, AED & CHF. The overall 

correspondent relationship with more than 80 banks across the 

world has been established which enable the bank to handle the 

business effectively for its clients. During the year under report 

bank has handled all types of forex products viz. Import Letters 

of Credit, Buyer's Credit, Foreign Currency Term Loans, Export 

Finance in Foreign Currency. Bank has canvassed more than                               

20 Crores in the form of Foreign Currency Non Resident  

(FCNR) deposits during the year under report. In the near future 

bank is expected to launch the pre-paid foreign currency 

denominated co-branded card. During the current financial year, 

bank plans to add two more currencies into it's fold in the form of 

SGD (Singapore Dollars) & CAD (Canadian Dollars).

Profitability:

Despite the pressures of keen competition and tighter monetary 

environment, your Bank earned net profit of   74.99 crores 

during 2012-13. Your Bank's Net Profit registered a year-on-

year growth of 24.80%.

sd

(    in Crores)

Profit before Tax & Provisions 113.01 104.89

Profit after Tax & Provisions 74.99 60.09

Particulars 2012-13 2011-12
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Your Bank's Return on Average Assets (ROA) continued to be 
one of the best in the industry and stood at 1.31%.

Dividend:

Your Bank's policy of declaring dividend is to reward the 
members as well as to plough back sufficient profit for 
maintaining a healthy Capital Adequacy Ratio and supporting 
future growth.  Your Board of Directors is pleased to 
recommend dividend @15% on pro rata for the year 2012-13.

Appropriation of Profit for F. Y. 2012-13

To provide to the shareholders a true and fair value of reserves, 
other  funds  and liabilities  as  on the date  of  Balance  Sheet, 
the  Bank has  given effect to  the  appropriation  of profits for 
the current year in the financial statements for the year ended 

st31  March, 2013 itself, subject to approval at the Annual 
General Meeting. (Refer to Page No. 36)

Expansion:

The  inauguration of the Bank's Corporate Office at TJSB 
House, Wagle Estate, Thane was done at the hands of Hon. Shri. 
S. Karuppasamy,  Executive Director, Reserve Bank of India, on 

st1  December, 2012.

Bank has recently entered in the state of Gujarat, by opening 
branches in Surat, Vadodara and Ahmedabad. The total net work 
of the bank has reached to 82. Bank has 3 branches in Goa, 2 in 
Karnataka and 3 in Gujarat. 

In the ensuing financial year, your Bank has submitted plans to 
RBI to open 24 branches to offer comprehensive services to its 
customers. 

Risk Management:

Banks, being financial intermediary, have to deal with various 
kinds of financial and non-financial risks viz., credit, interest 
rate, foreign exchange rate, liquidity, equity price, commodity 
price, legal, regulatory, reputational, operational, etc. These 
risks are highly interdependent and events that affect one area of 
risk can have ramifications for a range of other risk categories. 
Your Bank has been placing focus on the management and 
mitigation of risks which are so inherent to any financial 
intermediary functioning. To minimize risks and optimize 
profits, the Asset Liability Management of the Bank is being 
done proactively to manage any eventuality.

Your Bank has well set risk management framework to mitigate 
all risks and rewards of the products and services offered by your 
Bank. Accordingly, there is well defined rating system to 
identify, measure, monitor and control the overall level of risks 
undertaken.

Capital Adequacy:  

Your bank's business has been increasing significantly since last 
couple of years. Increase in business obviously results in 
increasing asset base of the bank which mainly consists of 
advances and investments. As the asset base of the bank has 
increased over the last couple of years, the risk weighted assets 
of the bank also have increased sizeably. On the other hand, the 
capital expenditure of the bank also has increased due to the 
undergoing branch expansion. This has resulted in decrease in 
bank's CRAR from 15.03% to 13.48% over the previous 
financial year. To strengthen bank's CRAR, your bank proposes 
to put up a proposal with the RBI for mobilizing long term 
deposits which qualifies under tier II capital for the calculation 
of CRAR. With the help of long term deposits, your bank's 
CRAR is expected to reinstate above 14% in F.Y. 2013-14.

Human Resource

Human Resource Development (HRD) includes the framework 
for helping employees develop their personal and organizational 
skills, knowledge and abilities. 

Healthy organizations believe in Human Resource 
Development and provide various means for developing 
superior workforce which include employee training. 

This enables the organization and individual employees to 
accomplish their work goals in service to customers.

Your Bank organizes staff training programmes at all levels 
throughout the year on a variety of topics. During 2012-13, 
33373 man-hours were deployed for 1385 participants in 64 
training programmes on various topics, which include Customer 
Service, Export Finance, Credit Monitoring, Credit Appraisal, 
Core Banking Solution, Leadership Development, etc.

Your Bank also believes in Knowledge gathering and sharing 
which has become exceedingly important in the current 
scenario. Programme material and presentations of the said 
programme are made available on "E Learning" site, which has 
been placed on TJSB Online for Quick reference of all staff 
members. 

Your Bank has taken several initiatives during the year in the 
areas of Manpower planning, Recruitment, Succession 
planning, Leadership development. Manpower plan for the year 
2012-13, 2013-14 scientifically factored the existing deficits as 
well as the future requirements due to business expansion and 
new initiatives.

Technological Advancement:

At TJSB, we have the best technology and we have always been 
ahead in the technology value chain. Our goal in using 
Information Technology (IT) has always been to make banking 
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convenient and pleasant experience for all our shareholders. 
Your Bank made significant progress in enabling technology to 
provide personalised, speedy and cost effective services to its 
customers.

Internet and digital media has brief and powerful history. In 
existence for just over two decades, they have shrunk the world. 
Connecting the people and simplifying the flow of information. 
Bank is following the principle of Digital World to bring more e-
banking services to its customer giving wider reach and 24x7 
accessibility. Dependence on technology has increased to such 
extent that banking business cannot be thought of in isolation 
without technology and exposing the Banks to technology risk 
which has direct impact on operational risk of the Bank.

Considering above, Bank has got its system and processes 
Certified for ISO / IEC 27001: 2005 certification (Accredited by 
the RvA) on 22/03/2013. The ISO / IEC 27001: 2005 
certification is bestowed for the "Information Security 
Management System" for the Information Technology 
operations with respect to the following scope:

Data Centre (DC) Operations at Thane

Disaster Recovery (DR) Site at Pune

Provision of Core Banking Solution & Information 
Technology Infrastructure Services to TJSB Sahakari Banks 
Branches and Partner Banks.

Bank is issuing two types of VISA Debit card options viz. 
Classic and Platinum to the customers. Customers of the Bank 
can use their VISA Debit Card not only at ATMs for cash 
withdrawals but also they can swap their cards at Point of Sale 
(POS) terminals across the globe or use it for e-commerce for 
online shopping, ticket booking etc. 

During the year Bank has started IMPS (Inter Bank Mobile 
Payment System) of NPCI. Using TJSB Mobile Banking, 
customers of the Bank can do balance inquiry, view statement of 
account and funds transfer to other Bank account. TJSB Mobile 
banking offers utility bill payment like MSEB and Reliance Bill 
payment, do mobile and DTH recharge, book a movie ticket and 
host of other facilities. For Direct Subsidy Transfer for the 
Customers of the Bank, AADHAR base system has been 
implemented in the Bank and interface to AADHAR Payment 
Bridge of NPCI has been tested and implemented successfully. 
One of the major area in customer service of Pass Book printing 
has been automated and at select branches Pass Book printer 
Kiosks has been installed giving the customer the facility to print 
the pass book instantly without going to the counter and save the 
time. This facility is now being extended 24x7. 

l The bank has installed Bulk Note (Cash) Acceptance 

Machines at Naupada and Mahatma Nagar branches. This is new 
initiative to facilitate cash deposit. During the year, the 
customization process was carried out.

l The bank has implemented multipurpose customer care 
banking kiosk for the convenience of the customer. The Multi-
function Kiosk facilitates the customers with the services such 
as the customer can operate these kiosks for Passbook printing, 
Statement Printing, Cheque Deposit 24 x 7 x 365. 

With increasing reliance on technology, business continuity is 
foremost important and Bank has conducted the DR drills twice 
a year and assuring of the continued services in case of disaster. 

As  part of other Business of IT, Bank has successfully 
implemented it's in house AML solution in 12 other co-operative 
Banks and is offering consultancy services to 6 Banks, DC/DR 
hosting services to 7 Banks and Core Banking Solution (CBS) 
Application Service Provider (ASP) services to 5 Banks. 

Going forward RBI is implementing Cheque Truncation System 
and Bank is implementing its own Clearing House Interface 
(CHI) System for easy /extended customer service for cheque 
clearance.  As per the directives of the RBI, bank is in the 
process of issuing chip base cards to customers travelling 
internationally frequently. During the year bank will be 
implementing new projects for customer relationship 
management, financial inclusion initiatives and extended 
delivery channels to widen the reach of the Banking.

New Lines of Business:
stYour Bank on 1  December, 2012 launched the Opening of 

Aadhar Card Enabled Accounts at the hands of Hon. Shri. S. 
Karuppasamy, Executive Director, Reserve Bank of India. The 
initiative has been taken by the Bank for extending the 
opportunity of financial inclusion for people from diverse 
economic backgrounds. So far bank has opened more than 
40000 AADHAR enabled accounts. Your Bank is the first Bank 
in co-operative sector to have been empanelled with Unique 
Identification Authority of India (UIDAI).

Corporate Governance:

Trust of customers forms the cornerstone of existence of your 
Bank. The presence of an effective corporate governance 
system, in your Bank has helped to provide a degree of 
confidence that is necessary for the proper functioning. 

Corporate Governance of your Bank ensures strong internal 
controls and provides the structure through which the objectives 
of the Bank are set, and the means of attaining those objectives 
and monitoring performance are determined. 

Your Bank is fully committed to adopt the best corporate 
governance practices in the Bank. Thrust of corporate 
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relating to co-operative societies in the Constitution of India, 
with an object to promote the co-operative societies with 
professional management and risk controls. These amendments 

thare incorporated in the 97  Constitution Amendment. The 
amendments aim at encouraging active participation of the 
members of the co-opertive society. The active participation of 
members is expected by way of availing products and services of 
the society and by attending the General Body Meetings. These 
amendments would usher in an era of professionalization and 
democratization and shall strengthen the co-operative 
movement.

In view of the above, the Board has proposed amendments to the 
bye-laws.

Your bank seeks wholehearted support for the proposed enbloc 
bye-law amendments.

Obituary:

We deeply mourn the death of members of your bank, customers 
and well wishers who passed away during the year under report.
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Governance is to enhance shareholder's value by pursuing 
ethical practices in the conduct of its business and maintaining 
high standard of disclosure and transparency. The Bank has 
adopted best practices and standards of governance which are 
monitored by various committees of the Board.

Membership:

The total number of members of the Bank as on 31.03.2013 
stood at 46647 as against 40921 of the previous year.

Appointment of Statutory Auditor:

The Board of Directors recommends to the Annual General 
Meeting appointment of M/S. Gokhale & Sathe, Chartered 
Accountants for the financial year 2013-14.  M/s. Gokhale & 
Sathe have consented to be appointed as Statutory Auditor.  The 
resolutions for their appointment will be moved under agenda 
item no.4 of the notice.  

Corporate Social Responsibility:

While performing effectively on professional front, TJSB is 
acknowledging its social responsibility by donating a part 
amount of its net profit to social organisations. Bank is actively 
associated with socially relevant environmental issues. Your 
Bank during F.Y. 2012-13 donated an amount of    56.60 lacs to 
54 social organizations.

Accolade:

I  have  a great pleasure to inform you that your bank has 
received  ''IBA  Banking  Technology  Awards  2011''  as the 
Second  Runner  up for  Best Technology of the year Award in 
the Co-operative banks category in recognition of its 
outstanding  achievement in the area of  Banking Technology 
for the year 2011.

Future Outlook: 

The current year would be challenging year for banks in view of 
the global economic development still remaining uncertain and 
concerns about persistent rising current account and fiscal 
deficit. Our inherent strengths, potential and wide network of 
branches, we expect, would enable us to sustained growth in the 
current financial year. Our thrust areas in the current year would 
be to improve our retail business, which would enable us to 
capitalise on the opportunities and meet the challenges.

Sustaining the growth momentum, your Bank would take up all 
challenges and touch new level in business growth and 
performance.

Bye-Law Amendment:

The Government of India has carried out certain amendments 
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mebmLes®es /yeBkesÀ®es veebJe ë ìerpesSmedyeer menkeÀejer yeBkeÀ efue. 

veeWoCeerke=Àle keÀe³ee&ue³ee®ee Hellee ë ìerpesSmedyeer neTme, Huee@ì veb 5yeer, jes[ veb.2, 

JeeieUs Fmìsì, þeCes (He)   400 604.

efjPeJe& yeBkeÀ HejJeevee ke´ÀceebkeÀ Je leejerKe ë Sce.S®e. 419 Heer, 21.01.1985

ceuìermìsì HejJeevee ke´ÀceebkeÀ Je leejerKe ë SceSmemeerSme/meerDeej/287/2008 efo. 23.10.2008.

keÀe³e&#es$e ë ceneje<ì^ jep³e, keÀvee&ìkeÀ jep³e, ieesJee jep³e DeeefCe iegpejeLe jep³e

leHeMeerue ë 31 cee®e& 2013

SketÀCe MeeKee,efJemleeefjle keÀ#e Je cegK³e : 81 +1+1 = 83

keÀe³ee&ue³ee®ee leHeMeerue ë

meYeemeo mebK³ee  1) meYeemeo ë 46647

                   2) veececee$e meYeemeo ë 44632

(jkeÀces®es DeekeÀ[s ueeKeeble)

Jemetue Peeuesues Yeeie Yeeb[Jeue ë 8678.27

SketÀCe iebieepeUer Je Flej efveOeer ë 49500.73 

þsJeer           ë ye®ele þsJeer ë 103491.96

                ë ®eeuet þsJeer ë 28803.58

                ë cegole þsJeer ë 398520.67

keÀpex           ë leejCeer ë 334863.53

                ë efJeveeleejCeer ë 5212.97

MeskeÀ[e He´ceeCe ë Deie´ke´Àce #es$eemeeþer ë 50.65%

                  ogye&ue IeìkeÀebmeeþer ë 4.39%

G®eueuesueer keÀpex ë efpeune ceO³eJeleea yeBkeÀ ë 0

                   ë Sve.S®e.yeer.                       3709.14

                   ë Flej yeBkeÀe          5423.64 

                   ë meer.yeer.Sue.Dees.  8838.09

iegbleJeCetkeÀ ë 226442.69

LekeÀyeekeÀer®es MeskeÀ[e He´ceeCe ë 2.61%

Hegbpeer He³ee&Hlelee (ke@ÀHeerìue De@ef[keÌJemeer) ë 13.48%

{esyeU Sve.Heer.S. ë 3.32%

efveJJeU Sve.Heer.S. ë 0

Dee@[erì Jeie& / efnMesye leHeemeCeer®ee Jeie& ë De

(meve 2012-13 meeþer)

veHeÀe (meve 2012-13 meeþer) : 7499.09

SketÀCe keÀce&®eejer ë 1009

HewkeÀer DeefOekeÀejer Je Flej keÀce&®eejer ë 944

efMeHeeF& Je Jee@®eceve : 65

KesUles Yeeb[Jeue : 6,31,126.40

HeefjefMe<ì - De
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31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesj
Ke®e& 31 cee®e& 2012

Je<e& DeKesjerme
31 cee®e& 2013

Je<e& DeKesjerme

1) þsJeer Je keÀpee&Jejerue J³eepe 3,87,07,62 2,90,58,50 

2) veeskeÀj Jeiee&®ee Heieej, Yelles  51,70,17  31,68,13 

3) meb®eeuekeÀeb®es ceeveOeve  7,00  1,77 

4) Yee[s, keÀj, efJecee Je Jeerpe  20,55,52  18,61,11 

5) keÀe³eoe Je J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ le%eeb®es MegukeÀ  1,32,18  77,36 

6) ìHeeue, leej Je ìsefueHeÀesve Ke®e&  3,47,61  2,15,81 

7) He´Jeeme Ke®e&  1,32,46  1,16,75 

8) efnMesye leHeemeCeer MegukeÀ  1,03,28  89,92 

9) ogjÀmleer Je osKeYeeue  5,43,62  3,30,29 

10) ceeuecellesJejerue Iemeeje 14,46,14  11,76,59 

11) leejCe He$eebJejerue keÀceer kesÀuesues DeefOecetu³e  2,17,46  2,76,59 

12) íHeeF& Je uesKeve meecegie´er Ke®e&  1,89,17  1,15,21 

13) peeefnjele Ke®e&  6,11,09  3,84,94 

14) ceeuecellee efJeke´Àerleerue leesìe  30,07  16,89 

15) S®ed.ìer.Sced. iegbleJeCegkeÀerbleerue leesìe  49,42  -   

16) ye@bkeÀ ®eepes&me  2,15,46  1,29,74 

17) efkeÌueDejerbie DeeefCe SvekeÀes[erbie ®eepes&me  59,48  59,68 

18) megj#ee J³eJemLee Ke®e&  2,78,04  1,88,65 

19) keÀjej Ke®e&  1,11,95  67,66 

20) Flej Ke®e&  6,65,78  4,45,78 

21) efHe´efce³ece Dee@ve peer-meskeÀd ce@®³egefjìer  3,92,30  -   

22) efveues&efKele yeg[erle keÀpe&  9,57  1,41,96 

Heg{erue HeeveeJej  5,14,75,39  3,79,23,33 



19 42 Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue  

mebHeuesu³ee Je<ee&®es veHeÀe-leesìe He$ekeÀ
pecee 31 cee®e& 2012

Je<e& DeKesjerme
31 cee®e& 2013

Je<e& DeKesjerme

1) efouesu³ee keÀpee&Jejerue J³eepe  3,83,70,41  2,86,65,02 

2) iegbleJeCegkeÀerJejerue J³eepe  1,97,18,47  1,66,72,07 

3) MesDeme&Jejerue ueeYeebMe  5  5 

4) JeìCeeJeU Je ngb[CeeJeU  11,06,41  9,24,16 

5) megj#ee KeCe Yee[s  1,57,62  1,42,83 

6) mejkeÀejer jesK³eeb®³ee Guee{eueerJejerue GlHevve  2,28,52  96,92 

7) S®ed.ìer.Sced. jesKes efJeke´Àer veHeÀe  75,17  -   

8) Flej GlHevve  22,37,02  17,28,34 

9) efveues&efKele yeg[erle keÀpee&leerue Jemegueer  5,10  1,29,77 

10) yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpe& efveOeerleerue HejleeJee  9,57  1,41,96 

11) lejlegoer Je DeekeÀefmcekeÀ Ke®ee&Jejerue HejleeJee  8,67,83  - 

Heg{erue HeeveeJej  6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

(   npeejeble)
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31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesj
Ke®e& 31 cee®e& 2012

Je<e& DeKesjerme
31 cee®e& 2013

Je<e& DeKesjerme

ceeieerue HeeveeJe ve  5,14,75,39  3,79,23,33 

23) lejlegoer Je mebYeeJ³e osCeer

De) yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpes&

i) yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpee&®eer lejleto  7,00,00  7,25,00 

ii) iegbleJeCegkeÀer®³ee mLeeveeblejeJejerue Iemeeje  51,70  4,65,80 

iii)  Flej ceeuecellesJejerue lejleto  -    5,00 

iv)  Hegvej&ef®ele keÀpee&®eer lejleto  93,82  -   

ye) efJeMes<e efveOeer (Dee³ekeÀj keÀe³eoe,1961-keÀuece 36(1) (viii) DevJe³es) 3,25,00  3,75,00 

keÀ) De@ceesìe&³ePesMeve Dee@HeÀ keÀe@mì Dee@HeÀ De@keÌJee³e[& ye@bkeÌmed

 veJepeerJeve veeiejer menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efue.  -    57,16 

Þeer meodiegjÀ pebieueer cenejepe menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efue. -    2,41,20 

[) GlHeeokeÀ efpeboieermeeþer mebYeeJ³e lejleto 3,00,00  2,25,00 

(24) keÀj HetJe& veHeÀe  98,30,26  84,83,63 

De) Dee³ekeÀj  26,00,00 

ye) ceeieerue Je<ee&®eer DeefOekeÀ lejleto  (3,81,92)  22,18,08  27,05,17 

keÀ) ef[HeÀ[& ì@keÌme  1,13,09  (2,30,88) 

efveJJeU veHeÀe  74,99,09  60,09,34 

SketÀCe 6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

ª

Þeer. efJe. De. JewMebHee³eve
DeO³e#e

Þeer. Yee. Jee. oeles
GHeeO³e#e

- meb®eeuekeÀ -
meew. He¨ee yee. De³³ej, Þeer. ce. Oe. Keglee[s, Þeer. j. Keg. keÀveeveer, Þeer. meer. veboieesHeeU cesveve, Þeer. He´. o. þeketÀj,
meew. De. je. DeeHeìs, Þeer. j. Keg. DeiejJeeue, Þeer. vee. o. ceeb[ies, Þeer. efJe. ce. HelkeÀer, Þeer. efJeveesokegÀceej yevmeue
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mebHeuesu³ee Je<ee&®es veHeÀe-leesìe He$ekeÀ
pecee 31 cee®e& 2012

Je<e& DeKesjerme
31 cee®e& 2013

Je<e& DeKesjerme

    ceeieerue HeeveeJe ve  6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

SketÀCe 6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

ª

(   npeejeble)

Deece®³ee ³ee®e leejKes®³ee DenJeeueevegmeej
peesMeer Je keÀjboerkeÀj
®eeì&[& DekeÀeGÀvìCìmed

Þeer. efJe. ce. keÀjboerkeÀj
Yeeieeroej
JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ
cesb.veb.042744
HeÀce& veb.104355w

ìer pes Smed yeer menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efueefceìs[ keÀefjlee

Þeer. me. j. GleskeÀj
cegK³e keÀe³e&keÀejer DeefOekeÀejer
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31 cee®e& 2013 DeKesj mebHeuesu³ee
leHeMeerue

Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe meYes®³ee cebpegjer DeOeerve

JewOeeefvekeÀ jeKeerJe efveOeer  19,00,00  15,02,50 

meJe&meeOeejCe efveOeer  1,97,00  19,59,90 

iegbleJeCetkeÀ ®e{-Gleej efveOeer  10,00,00  5,00,00 

YeeieOeejkeÀebme ueeYeebMe @15…  11,80,00  9,50,00 

Oecee&oe³e efveOeer 1…  74,99  60,09 

meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer  10,00  10,00 

efMe#eCe efveOeer 1… 74,99  60,09 

mebYeeJ³e osCeer lejleto 10…  7,50,00  6,01,50 

keÀce&®eejer meevegie´n efveOeer  4,92,06  3,65,29 

yegef[le Je mebMeef³ele efveOeer  18,20,00  -   

 74,99,04  60,09,37 

leeUsyeboele Jeie& keÀsuesuee veHeÀe  15  10 

                                                                                                          SkeÀtCe  74,99,19  60,09,47 

31 cee®e& 2012
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013
jespeer

Þeer. efJe. De. JewMebHee³eve
DeO³e#e

Þeer. Yee. Jee. oeles
GHeeO³e#e

- meb®eeuekeÀ -
meew. He¨ee yee. De³³ej, Þeer. ce. Oe. Keglee[s, Þeer. j. Keg. keÀveeveer, Þeer. meer. veboieesHeeU cesveve, Þeer. He´. o. þeketÀj,
meew. De. je. DeeHeìs, Þeer. j. Keg. DeiejJeeue, Þeer. vee. o. ceeb[ies, Þeer. efJe. ce. HelkeÀer, Þeer. efJeveesokegÀceej yevmeue
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Je<ee&®es veHeÀe-leesìe JeeìCeer Keeles
leHeMeerue

veHeÀe  74,99,09  60,09,34 

ceeieerue Je<ee&®ee veHeÀe  10  13 

                                                                                        SketÀCe  74,99,19  60,09,47 

31 cee®e& 2012
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013
jespeer

(   npeejeble)

Deece®³ee ³ee®e leejKes®³ee DenJeeueevegmeej
peesMeer Je keÀjboerkeÀj
®eeì&[& DekeÀeGÀvìCìmed

Þeer. efJe. ce. keÀjboerkeÀj
Yeeieeroej
JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ
cesb.veb.042744
HeÀce& veb.104355w

ìer pes Smed yeer menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efueefceìs[ keÀefjlee

Þeer. me. j. GleskeÀj
cegK³e keÀe³e&keÀejer DeefOekeÀejer
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1) Yeeie Yeeb[Jeue A  86,78,27  72,10,06 

2) jeKeerJe Je Flej efveOeer B  4,94,25,73  4,24,01,21 

3) þsJeer Je Flej Keeleer C  53,08,16,21  43,44,97,11 

4) Iesleuesueer keÀpes& D  1,79,70,87  2,55,69,47 

5) Flej osCeer Jemegueer®eer efyeues  55,58,43  49,89,05 

(³esCes yeepetHe´ceeCes)

6) MeeKee pegUJeCeer  -    -   

7) LekeÀerle J³eepe lejleto  54,11,34  50,48,52 

8) osCes J³eepe  11,75,24  18,43,53 

9) Flej osCeer E  2,30,59,93  2,01,12,37

10) De@ceesìe&³ePesMeve efjPeJe& F  29,29,50  29,29,50 

11) veHeÀe / leesìe G  15  10 

   SkeÀtCe  64,50,25,67  54,46,00,92 

mebYeeJ³e osCeer P  2,93,06,75  2,88,28,58

31 cee®e& 2012
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013 ®ee
Yeeb[Jeue Je osCeer HeefjefMe<ì

Þeer. efJe. De. JewMebHee³eve
DeO³e#e

Þeer. Yee. Jee. oeles
GHeeO³e#e

- meb®eeuekeÀ -
meew. He¨ee yee. De³³ej, Þeer. ce. Oe. Keglee[s, Þeer. j. Keg. keÀveeveer, Þeer. meer. veboieesHeeU cesveve, Þeer. He´. o. þeketÀj,
meew. De. je. DeeHeìs, Þeer. j. Keg. DeiejJeeue, Þeer. vee. o. ceeb[ies, Þeer. efJe. ce. HelkeÀer, Þeer. efJeveesokegÀceej yevmeue
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1) jesKe Je ye@bkesÀleerue efMeuuekeÀ H  3,53,89,46  2,65,97,24 

2) ye@bkeÀebceOeerue pecee I  4,44,20,24  5,10,49,17 

3) ceeieCeer ³eesi³e þsJe/meeryeerSuedDees uesbef[bie  -    -   

4) iegbleJeCetkeÀ J  18,20,22,45  16,22,57,01 

5) efouesueer keÀpes& K  34,00,76,51  26,40,18,35 

6) ³esCes J³eepe
De)  iegbleJeCetkeÀ Je keÀce&®eejer keÀpes& L  64,51,39  67,26,47 
ye)  yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpee&Jejerue (osCes yeepet He´ceeCes)  54,11,34  50,48,52 

7) MeeKee pegUJeCeer  1,32,85  38,82 

8) Flej osCeer Jemegueer®eer efyeues (osCes yeepetHe´ceeCes) 55,58,43  49,89,05 

9) mLeeJej ceeuecellee M  68,38,27  61,62,72 

10) Yeeb[Jeueer Ke®e& (He´uebefyele)  2,13,68  2,38,47 

11) Flej efpeboieer N  1,55,81,55  1,45,45,60 

12) keÀe@mì Dee@HeÀ De@efkeÌJeefPeMeve O  29,29,50  29,29,50 

SketÀCe  64,50,25,67  54,46,00,92

31 cee®e& 2012
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013
jespeer

leeUsyebo
efpeboieer Je ³esCeer HeefjefMe<ì

(   npeejeble)

Deece®³ee ³ee®e leejKes®³ee DenJeeueevegmeej
peesMeer Je keÀjboerkeÀj
®eeì&[& DekeÀeGÀvìCìmed

Þeer. efJe. ce. keÀjboerkeÀj
Yeeieeroej
JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ
cesb.veb.042744
HeÀce& veb.104355w

ìer pes Smed yeer menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efueefceìs[ keÀefjlee

Þeer. me. j. GleskeÀj
cegK³e keÀe³e&keÀejer DeefOekeÀejer
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HeefjefMe<ì

HeefjefMe<ì A - Yeeb[Jeue
DeefOeke=Àle Yeeb[Jeue (4,00,00,000 Yeeie He´l³eskeÀer   50/- ®es)  2,00,00,00  2,00,00,00
YejCee Peeuesues Yeeb[Jeue (1,73,56,543 Yeeie He´l³eskeÀer    50/- ®es)  86,78,27  72,10,06

HeefjefMe<ì B - jeKeerJe Je Flej efveOeer 
 i) JewOeeefvekeÀ jeKeerJe efveOeer  2,21,35,48  2,02,14,06 
 ii) Fceejle efveOeer 24,00,00  24,00,00 
 iii) yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpe& efveOeer  1,12,86,50  87,76,08 
 iv) GlHeeokeÀ efpeboieermeeþer mebYeeJ³e lejleto  12,49,90  9,49,90 
 v) iegbleJeCetkeÀ ®e{-Gleej efveOeer  52,24,46  42,24,46 
 vi) meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer  1,07,33  1,03,38 
 vii) meJe&meeOeejCe efveOeer  26,56,90  24,59,90 
viii) Fceejle Hegvece&tu³eebkeÀve efveOeer  29,28  32,54 
 ix) efJeMes<e efveOeer (Dee³ekeÀj keÀe³eoe,1961 keÀuece36 (1) (viii) DevJe³es)  16,78,00  13,53,00 
 x) yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele iegbleJeCegkeÀermeeþer lejleto  44,35  44,35 
 xi) Oecee&oe³e efveOeer  80,80  60,81 
xii) mebYeeJ³e efveOeer 25,32,73  17,82,73

 SketÀCe  4,94,25,73  4,24,01,21

HeefjefMe<ì C - þsJeer Je Flej Keeleer 
1. ®eeuet þsJeer

 i) Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ þsJeeroej  2,85,15,83  2,59,72,27 
 ii) Flej meesmee³eìerped  2,87,75  1,54,52 

SketÀCe  2,88,03,58  2,61,26,79 
2. ye®ele þsJeer

 i) Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ þsJeeroej  9,98,06,98  8,84,75,65 
 ii) Flej meesmee³eìerped  36,84,98  32,29,55 

 SketÀCe   10,34,91,96  9,17,05,20
3. cegole þsJeer

 i) Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ þsJeeroej  37,06,84,02  29,78,68,14 
 ii) Flej meesmee³eìerped  1,30,60,34  1,07,69,96

 SketÀCe   38,37,44,36  30,86,38,10
 
4. cegoleHetCe& cegole þsJeer  1,47,76,31  80,27,02 

SketÀCe (1+2+3+4)  53,08,16,21  43,44,97,11

31 cee®e& 2012
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013
jespeer

(   npeejeble)
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HeefjefMe<ì

HeefjefMe<ì D - Iesleuesueer keÀpes&
 i) je<ì^er³e DeeJeeme ye@bkesÀkeÀ[tve keÀpe&  37,09,14  61,58,78 
 ii) efjHeÀe³eveevmed efve³ee&le  9,20,00  -   
 iii) meeryeerSuedDees  88,38,09  1,94,10,69 
 iv) cegole þsJeerJejerue keÀpe&  45,03,64  -   

 SketÀCe  1,79,70,87  2,55,69,47 

HeefjefMe<ì E - Flej osCeer
 i) Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ þsJeeroej efkeÀjkeÀesU osCeer (meb[^er ke´sÀ[erìme&)  2,67,72  2,05,08 
 ii) mej®eepe& HesSyeued (Jemegueer)  -    8 
 iii) osCeer Ke®ee&®eer lejleto   8,60,48  5,39,65 
 iv) DeeieeGÀ JeìCeeJeU (cego´ebkeÀ MegukeÀ)/DeeieeGÀ J³eepe (ie=n keÀpes&)  75,26  42,38 
 v) Hes mueerHe HesSyeued  17,38,83  12,42,91 
 vi) [^e ì HesSyeued  43  26,80 
 vii) MesDej memHesbme/veececee$e meYeemeo MegukeÀ  2,25  1,73 
 viii) iegbleJeCegkeÀerJejerue IemeeN³eemeeþer mebYeeJ³e lejleto  -    8,67,83 
 ix) ìer.[er.Smed.HesSyeued  1,30,68  76,24 
 x) mesJee keÀj HesSyeued  14,44  16,84 
 xi) ueesve efkeÌueDejerbie De@[pesmìcesbì / efkeÌueDejerbie De@[pesmìcesbì  66,42  6,38 
 xii) Dee³ekeÀj lejleto  93,03,05  86,20,38 
 xiii) os³e ueeYeebMe  12,63,60  10,09,29 
 xiv) MesDeme& keÀueskeÌMeve DekeÀeGvì (De@keÌJee³e[& ye@bkeÌme)  10,40,77  10,40,77 
 xv) Flej ceeuecellesmeeþer lejleto  48,07,37  48,46,89 
 xvi) Sced Je@ì HesSyeued  2,06  1,78 
 xvii) keÀce&®eejer meevegie´n efveOeer  4,92,05  3,65,29 
xviii) keÀce&®eejer ³esCes J³eepe lejleto  -    12 
 xix) Sved.SHeÀd.Smed mesìuecesbì DekeÀeGvì  1,46,14  38,85 
 xx) jpee JeìJeC³eemeeþer lejleto  3,50,00  3,88,20 
 xxi) menkeÀejer efMe#eCe efveOeer  74,99  60,09 
 xxii) HeÀe@jskeÌme Hegvecet&u³eebkeÀve lejleto  -    15,30 
 xxiii) ueerJn ye@bkeÀ Keeles lejleto  35,88  26,19 
 xxiv) Hegvej&ef®ele keÀpee&®eer lejleto  93,82  -   
 xxv) F F ShedÀ meer efMeuuekeÀ  22,93,69  6,73,30 

 SketÀCe  2,30,59,93  2,01,12,37 

HeefjefMe<ì F- De@ceesìe&³ePesMeve efjPeJe&

 i) veJepeerJeve veeiejer menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efue.  2,98,76  2,98,76 
 ii) Þeer meodiegjÀ pebieueer cenejepe menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efue.  26,30,74  26,30,74 

 SketÀCe  29,29,50  29,29,50.

HeÌ

31 cee®e& 2012
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013
jespeer

(   npeejeble)
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HeefjefMe<ì

HeefjefMe<ì G - veHeÀe leesìe JeeìCeer He$ekeÀ (meboYe& He=<þ ke´À.22)

HeefjefMe<ì H - jesKe Je ye@bkesÀleerue efMeuuekeÀ
 i) neleeleerue jesKe jkeÌkeÀce  27,51,97  21,14,95 

®eeuet þsJeer pecee
 ii) efjPeJe& ye@bkeÀ Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee efMeuuekeÀ  2,69,21,34  2,19,09,58 
 iii) mìsì ye@bkeÀ DeeefCe Flej je<ì^er³eerke=Àle ye@bkeÀe  11,03,97  8,78,80 
 iv) jep³e menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ  34  17 
 v) efpeune ceO³eJeleer& menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ  13  8 
 vi) Flej ye@bkeÀe  18,19,65  8,13,93 
 vii) HejosMeeleerue ye@bkeÀeceOeerue efMeuuekeÀ  27,92,06  8,79,73 

SketÀCe  3,53,89,46  2,65,97,24 

HeefjefMe<ì I - ye@bkeÀebceOeerue pecee
 i) jep³e/efpeune ceO³eJeleer& menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ cegole þsJeer  1,00  1,00 
 ii) mìsì ye@bkeÀ DeeefCe Flej je<ì^er³eerke=Àle ye@bkeÀe cegole þsJeer  2,29,06,88  2,95,30,75 
 iii) Flej ye@bkeÀe cegole þsJeer  2,15,12,36  2,15,17,42 

 SketÀCe  4,44,20,24  5,10,49,17 

HeefjefMe<ì J - iegbleJeCetkeÀ
 i) mejkeÀejer leejCeHe$es  15,56,58,18  13,66,92,74 
 ii) Flej efJeMJemle leejCeHe$es  -    -   
 iii) Flej menkeÀejer mebmLeeb®es MesDeme&  44,69  44,69 
 iv) jesKes Je DeHeefjJele&veer³e leejCeHe$es  2,56,19,58  2,55,19,58 
 v) meìer&efHeÀkesÀìmed Dee@HeÀ ef[Hee@efPeì  7,00,00  -   

 SketÀCe  18,20,22,45  16,22,57,01

31 cee®e& 2012
jespeer

31 cee®e& 2013
jespeer

(   npeejeble)
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HeefjefMe<ì
31 cee®e& 2012

jespeer
31 cee®e& 2013

jespeer

HeefjefMe<ì K - efouesueer keÀpes&

1) DeuHe cegole keÀpes&, keÀ@Me ke´sÀ[erì, DeesJnj[^e ì Je Jemegueer®eer efyeues
i) mejkeÀejer Je Flej leejCe keÀpes&  3,69,03  3,71,45 
ii) Flej vepejieneCe leejCe keÀpes&  15,50,38,43  10,80,37,67 
iii) efJevee leejCe keÀpes& 17,00,50  14,70,03 

Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-   1,28,69,43]) 1,63,38,28 
LekeÀyeekeÀer keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-   53,42,05) 40,18,97 
yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-   26,06,35)  28,39,73 
(HetCe& lejleto)

 SketÀCe (1)  15,71,07,96  10,98,79,15 

2) ceO³ece cegole keÀpes&
i) mejkeÀejer Je Flej leejCe keÀpes&  2,44,75  2,26,11 
ii) Flej vepejieneCe leejCe keÀpes&  5,08,30,70  4,46,31,90 
iii) efJevee leejCe keÀpes& 25,46,45  19,18,83 

Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-   1,69,04,87) 2,26,55,00 
LekeÀyeekeÀer keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-    20,64,90) 25,42,30 
yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-   17,58,39)  33,93,68 
(HetCe& lejleto)

 SketÀCe (2)  5,36,21,90  4,67,76,84 

3) oerIe& cegole keÀpes&
i) mejkeÀejer Je Flej leejCe keÀpes&  78,65  1,05,14 
ii) Flej vepej ieneCe leejCe keÀpes&  12,83,01,98  10,62,43,37 
iii) efJevee leejCe keÀpes& 9,66,02  10,13,85

Jew³eefkeÌlekeÀ keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-    4,94,28,33) 5,79,09,22  
LekeÀyeekeÀer keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-    32,94,32) 23,11,09 
yeg[erle Je mebMeef³ele keÀpes& (ceeieerue Je<eer&-   25,88,27) 50,46,16 
(HetCe& lejleto)

SketÀCe (3)  12,93,46,65  10,73,62,36 

SketÀCe (1+2+3)  34,00,76,51  26,40,18,35 

HeefjefMe<ì L - J³eepe ³esCes
i) iegbleJeCegkeÀerJejerue  59,94,82  62,80,19 
ii) keÀce&®eejer ie=n keÀpee&Jejerue  4,56,57  4,46,28 

SketÀCe  64,51,39  67,26,47 

HeÌ

(   npeejeble)
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HeefjefMe<ì
31 cee®e& 2012

jespeer
31 cee®e& 2013

jespeer

HeefjefMe<ì N - Flej efpeboieer

 i)  efkeÀjkeÀesU ³esCeer  41,98  44,99 
 ii)  uesKeve meecegie´er  1,20,00  91,53 
 iii)  Deveecele jkeÌkeÀce  1,38,02  1,26,49 
 iv)  ve JeeHejuesues mì@bcHmed  94  1,29 
 v)  mesJeekeÀj / mesveJn@ì ³esCes  28,23  54,00 
 vi)  peeiesmeeþer Deveecele jkeÌkeÀce  4,79,76  3,37,80 
 vii)  DeeieeGÀ He´À@bkeÀerbie Ke®e&  -    1,29,78 
viii)  ef[HeÀ[& ì@keÌme De@mesì  3,43,79  4,56,89 
 ix)  HeÀe@jskeÌme Hegvecet&u³eebkeÀve lejleto  30,33  -   
 x)  DeeieeGÀ kesÀuesuee Ke®e&  85,42  74,10 
 xi)  DeeieeGÀ Yejuesuee Dee³ekeÀj  94,29,37  83,41,51 
 xii)  Dev³e ³esCeer  76,34  45,33 
 xiii)  Flej ceeuecellee  48,07,37  48,41,89 
 xiv)  HeÀe@jskeÌme Flej efpeboieer  -    -   

SketÀCe  1,55,81,55  1,45,45,60 

HeefjefMe<ì O - keÀe@mì Dee@HeÀ De@efkeÌJeefPeMeve

veJepeerJeve veeiejer menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efue.  2,98,76  2,98,76 
Þeer meodiegjÀ pebieueer cenejepe menkeÀejer ye@bkeÀ efue.  26,30,74  26,30,74 

 SketÀCe  29,29,50  29,29,50 

HeefjefMe<ì P - mebYeeJ³e osCeer

 i) ye@bkeÀ nceer He$es  99,54,51  94,16,92 
 ii) Hele He$es / yee³eme& kes´Àef[ì  1,11,56,18  94,60,09 
 iii) HeÀe@jJe[& SkeÌme®esbpe keÀe@vì^@keÌìdmed  81,96,06  99,51,57 

 SketÀCe  2,93,06,75  2,88,28,58 

(   npeejeble)
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR 

E X P E N D I T U R E

(1) Interest on Deposits and Borrowings 3,87,07,62 2,90,58,50 

(2) Salaries and allowances  51,70,17  31,68,13 

(3) Directors and local committee members fees  7,00  1,77 

(4) Rent, Rates, Taxes, Insurance and Lighting  20,55,52  18,61,11 

(5) Legal and Professional Charges  1,32,18  77,36 

(6) Postage, Telegrams and Telephone Charges  3,47,61  2,15,81 

(7) Travelling and Conveyance  1,32,46  1,16,75 

(8) Audit Fees  1,03,28  89,92 

(9) Repairs and Maintenance  5,43,62  3,30,29 

(10) Depreciation on Fixed Assets 14,46,14  11,76,59 

(11) Amortisation of premium on Securities  2,17,46  2,76,59 

(12) Printing and Stationery  1,89,17  1,15,21 

(13) Advertisement  6,11,09  3,84,94 

(14) Loss on sale of Assets  30,07  16,89 

(15) Loss on sale of HTM Securities  49,42  -   

(16) Bank Charges  2,15,46  1,29,74 

(17) Clearing & Encoding Charges  59,48  59,68 

(18) Security Charges  2,78,04  1,88,65 

(19) Contractual Expenses  1,11,95  67,66 

(20) Other Expenses  6,65,78  4,45,78 

(21) Premium on G-Sec Maturity  3,92,30  -   

(22) Bad debts Written Off  9,57  1,41,96 

Balance c/f  5,14,75,39  3,79,23,33 

Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2013
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stTHE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2013
(   in Thousands)

(2) Interest on Investment  1,97,18,47  1,66,72,07 

(3) Dividend on shares  5  5 

(4) Commission, Exchange and Brokerage  11,06,41  9,24,16 

(5) Rent on Safe Deposit Lockers  1,57,62  1,42,83 

(6) Income from sale of securities  2,28,52  96,92 

(7) Profit on Sale of HTM Securities  75,17  -   

(8) Other Income  22,37,02  17,28,34 

(9) Written off Bad Debts recovered  5,10  1,29,77 

(10) BDDR Written Back  9,57  1,41,96 

(11) Expenditure Provision & Contingencies  8,67,83  -   

Written Back

Balance c/f  6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

(1) Interest on Advances  3,83,70,41  2,86,65,02 

Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2013

I N C O M E
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E X P E N D I T U R E

     Balance b/f  5,14,75,39  3,79,23,33 

(23) PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

A) Bad & Doubtful Debts

i)   Amount Provided for Bad and Doubtful Debts  7,00,00  7,25,00 

ii)  Expenditure Provision & Contingencies  51,70  4,65,80 

iii)  Provision for Miscellaneous Assets  -    5,00 

iv)  Provision for Restructured Advance  93,82  -   

B) Special Reserve (u/s 36(1) (viii) of Income Tax Act, 1961) 3,25,00  3,75,00 

C) Amortisation of Cost of Acquired Banks

 Navjeevan Nagari Sahakari Bank Ltd.  -    57,16 

Shree Sadguru Jangli Maharaj Sahakari Bank Ltd. -    2,41,20 

D) Contingent provision against Standard Assets 3,00,00  2,25,00 

(24) PROFIT BEFORE TAX  98,30,26  84,83,63 

Income Tax  26,00,00 

Earlier year's excess provision  (3,81,92)  22,18,08  27,05,17 

Deferred Tax  1,13,09  (2,30,88) 

NET PROFIT  74,99,09  60,09,34 

TOTAL 6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2013

Shri. V. A. Vaishampayan
CHAIRMAN 

Shri. B. V. Date
VICE-CHAIRMAN

 - Directors -

Mrs. P. B. Iyer, Shri. M. D. Khutade, Shri. R. K. Kanani, Shri. C. N. Menon, Shri. P. D. Thakur

Mrs. A. R. Apte, Shri. R. K. Agarwal, Shri. N. D. Mandge, Shri. V. M. Patki, Shri. Vinodkumar Bansal

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR 
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      Balance b/f  6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

TOTAL 6,27,76,17  4,85,01,12 

Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2013

I N C O M E

stTHE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2013
(   in Thousands)

As per our report of even date annexed
For JOSHI & KARANDIKAR    
Chartered Accountants

Shri. V. M. Karandikar
Partner  
Statutory Auditors
Mem. No. 042744
Firm Reg. No. 104355W

For TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited

Shri. S. R. Utekar
Chief Executive Officer
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PROFIT AND LOSS APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT 

P A R T I C U L A R S 

Appropriations subject to AGM approval

Statutory Reserve Fund  19,00,00  15,02,50 

General Reserve  1,97,00  19,59,90 

Investment Fluctuation Reserve  10,00,00  5,00,00 

Dividend to Shareholders @ 15%  11,80,00  9,50,00 

Charitable Fund @ 1%  74,99  60,09 

Members Welfare Fund  10,00  10,00 

Co-operative Education Fund @ 1% 74,99  60,09 

Contingency Reserve @ 10%  7,50,00  6,01,50 

Ex-Gratia to Employees  4,92,06  3,65,29 

Bad & Doubtful Debts Fund  18,20,00  -   

 74,99,04  60,09,37 

NET PROFIT CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET  15  10 

TOTAL  74,99,19  60,09,47 

Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2013

Shri. V. A. Vaishampayan
CHAIRMAN 

Shri. B. V. Date
VICE-CHAIRMAN

 - Directors -

Mrs. P. B. Iyer, Shri. M. D. Khutade, Shri. R. K. Kanani, Shri. C. N. Menon, Shri. P. D. Thakur

Mrs. A. R. Apte, Shri. R. K. Agarwal, Shri. N. D. Mandge, Shri. V. M. Patki, Shri. Vinodkumar Bansal
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stFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2013
(   in Thousands)

As per our report of even date annexed
For JOSHI & KARANDIKAR    
Chartered Accountants

Shri. V. M. Karandikar
Partner  
Statutory Auditors
Mem. No. 042744
Firm Reg. No. 104355W

For TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited

Shri. S. R. Utekar
Chief Executive Officer

P A R T I C U L A R S 

Profit b/f  74,99,09  60,09,34 

Profit of last year  10  13 

   TOTAL  74,99,19  60,09,47 

Year ended
31 March 2012

Year ended
31 March 2013
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(1) CAPITAL A  86,78,27  72,10,06 

(2) RESERVE FUND AND OTHER RESERVES B  4,94,25,73  4,24,01,21 

(3) DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS C  53,08,16,21  43,44,97,11 

(4) BORROWINGS D  1,79,70,87  2,55,69,47 

(5) BILLS FOR COLLECTION  55,58,43  49,89,05 
BEING BILLS FOR RECEIVABLE 
(as per Contra)

(6) BRANCH ADJUSTMENTS  -    -   

(7) OVERDUE INTEREST RESERVE  54,11,34  50,48,52 

(8) INTEREST PAYABLE  11,75,24  18,43,53 

(9) OTHER LIABILITIES E  2,30,59,93  2,01,12,37

(10) AMORTISATION RESERVE F  29,29,50  29,29,50 

(11) PROFIT & LOSS G  15  10 

   GRAND TOTAL  64,50,25,67  54,46,00,92 

     CONTINGENT LIABILITIES P  2,93,06,75  2,88,28,58

As on
31 March 2012

As on
31 March 2013

BALANCE SHEET AS ON

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES Schedule

Shri. V. A. Vaishampayan
CHAIRMAN 

Shri. B. V. Date
VICE-CHAIRMAN

 - Directors -

Mrs. P. B. Iyer, Shri. M. D. Khutade, Shri. R. K. Kanani, Shri. C. N. Menon, Shri. P. D. Thakur

Mrs. A. R. Apte, Shri. R. K. Agarwal, Shri. N. D. Mandge, Shri. V. M. Patki, Shri. Vinodkumar Bansal
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(1) CASH AND BANK BALANCES H  3,53,89,46  2,65,97,24 

(2) BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS I  4,44,20,24  5,10,49,17 

(3) MONEY AT CALL & SHORT NOTICE / CBLO  -    -   

(4) INVESTMENTS J  18,20,22,45  16,22,57,01 

(5) ADVANCES K  34,00,76,51  26,40,18,35 

(6) INTEREST RECEIVABLE
(a)   on Investments and Staff Loan L  64,51,39  67,26,47 
(b)   on Advances (considered bad & doubtful 
        of recovery) (as per Contra)  54,11,34  50,48,52 

(7) BRANCH ADJUSTMENTS  1,32,85  38,82 

(8) BILLS RECEIVABLE 55,58,43  49,89,05 
BEING BILLS FOR COLLECTION (as per Contra)

(9) FIXED ASSETS M  68,38,27  61,62,72 

(10) CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS  2,13,68  2,38,47 

(11) OTHER ASSETS N  1,55,81,55  1,45,45,60 

(12) COST OF ACQUISITION O  29,29,50  29,29,50 

GRAND TOTAL  64,50,25,67  54,46,00,92

As on
31 March 2012

As on
31 March 2013

st31  MARCH 2013

PROPERTY & ASSETS Schedule

As per our report of even date annexed
For JOSHI & KARANDIKAR    
Chartered Accountants

Shri.V. M. Karandikar
Partner  
Statutory Auditors
Mem. No. 042744
Firm Reg. No. 104355W

For TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited

Shri. S. R. Utekar
Chief Executive Officer

(   in Thousands)
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SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE A - CAPITAL 
Authorised Capital 
4,00,00,000 Shares of    50/- each  2,00,00,00  2,00,00,00 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital 
1,73,56,543 Shares of     50/- each  86,78,27  72,10,06

SCHEDULE B - RESERVE FUND AND OTHER RESERVES 

 i) Statutory Reserve  2,21,35,48  2,02,14,06 
 ii) Building Fund 24,00,00  24,00,00 
 iii) Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve  1,12,86,50  87,76,08 
 iv) Contingent Provision against  Standard Assets  12,49,90  9,49,90 
 v) Investment Fluctuation Reserve  52,24,46  42,24,46 
 vi) Members Welfare Fund  1,07,33  1,03,38 
 vii) General Reserve  26,56,90  24,59,90 
viii) Building Revaluation Reserve  29,28  32,54 
 ix) Special Reserve u/s 36 (1) (viii) of Income Tax Act 1961  16,78,00  13,53,00 
 x) Provision for Bad & Doubtful Investments  44,35  44,35 
 xi) Charitable Fund  80,80  60,81 
xii) Contingency Reserve 25,32,73  17,82,73

  Total  4,94,25,73  4,24,01,21

SCHEDULE C - DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 
I Current Deposits 

 I) Individuals  2,85,15,83  2,59,72,27 
 ii) Other societies  2,87,75  1,54,52 

Total  2,88,03,58  2,61,26,79 

II  Savings Deposits 
 i) Individuals  9,98,06,98  8,84,75,65 
 ii) Other societies  36,84,98  32,29,55 

 Total  10,34,91,96  9,17,05,20

III  Term Deposits 
 i) Individuals  37,06,84,02  29,78,68,14 
 ii) Other societies  1,30,60,34  1,07,69,96

 Total  38,37,44,36  30,86,38,10
 
IV  Matured Deposits  1,47,76,31  80,27,02 

 Total (I+II+III+IV)  53,08,16,21  43,44,97,11

As on
31 March 2012

As on
31 March 2013

(   in Thousands)
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SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE D - BORROWINGS 

 i) Refinance from National Housing Bank   37,09,14  61,58,78 
 ii) Export Refinance  9,20,00  -   
 iii) CBLO Borrowings  88,38,09  1,94,10,69 
 iv) Overdraft against Fixed Deposit   45,03,64  -   

 Total  1,79,70,87  2,55,69,47 

SCHEDULE E - OTHER LIABILITIES 

 i) Sundry Creditors  2,67,72  2,05,08 
 ii) Surcharge Payable (Recovery)  -    8 
 iii) Provision for Expenses   8,60,48  5,39,65 
 iv) Advance Interest received  75,26  42,38 
 v) Payslip Payable  17,38,83  12,42,91 
 vi) Draft Payable  43  26,80 
 vii) Share Suspense / Nominal Membership fee  2,25  1,73 
 viii) Contingent Provision for Depreciation in Investments  -    8,67,83 
 ix) TDS Payable  1,30,68  76,24 
 x) Service Tax payable  14,44  16,84 
 xi) Loan Clearing Adjustment / Clearing  Adjustment  66,42  6,38 
 xii) Provision for Income Tax  93,03,05  86,20,38 
 xiii) Dividend Payable  12,63,60  10,09,29 
 xiv) Share Collection Account - [ Acquired Banks ]  10,40,77  10,40,77 
 xv) Provision for Miscellaneous Asset  48,07,37  48,46,89 
 xvi) MVAT Payable  2,06  1,78 
 xvii) Ex-gratia   4,92,05  3,65,29 
xviii) Staff Interest Reserve Account  -    12 
 xix) NFS Settlement account  1,46,14  38,85 
 xx) Provision for Leave Encashment  3,50,00  3,88,20 
 xxi) Co-operative Education Fund  74,99  60,09 
 xxii) Forex Deal Revaluation Provision  -    15,30 
 xxiii) Provision for Leave Bank Account  35,88  26,19 
 xxiv) Provision for Restructured Advances  93,82  -   
 xxv) Balance with Correspondents EEFC A/C  22,93,69  6,73,30 

 Total  2,30,59,93  2,01,12,37 

SCHEDULE F - AMORTISATION RESERVE

 i) Navjeevan Nagari Sahakari Bank Ltd.  2,98,76  2,98,76 
 ii) Shree Sadguru Jangli Maharaj Sahakari Bank Ltd.  26,30,74  26,30,74 

 Total  29,29,50  29,29,50 

As on
31 March 2012

As on
31 March 2013

(   in Thousands)
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SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE G - PROFIT & LOSS

Refer to Profit and Loss Appropriation Account and note 

in Notes to Accounts 

SCHEDULE H - CASH AND BANK BALANCES 

 i)  Cash in Hand  27,51,97  21,14,95 

 Current Deposits 

 ii)  Balances with Reserve Bank of India  2,69,21,34  2,19,09,58 

 iii)  Balances with SBI and Nationalised Banks  11,03,97  8,78,80 

 iv)  Balances with State Co-operative Bank  34  17 

 v)  Balances with District Central Co-operative Banks  13  8 

 vi)  Balances with other Banks  18,19,65  8,13,93 

 vii)  Balances with Banks abroad  27,92,06  8,79,73 

 Total  3,53,89,46  2,65,97,24 

SCHEDULE I - BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS 

 i)   Fixed Deposit with State / District Central Co-op Banks  1,00  1,00 

 ii)  Fixed Deposit with SBI and Nationalised Banks  2,29,06,88  2,95,30,75 

 iii)  Fixed Deposit with other Banks  2,15,12,36  2,15,17,42 

 Total  4,44,20,24  5,10,49,17 

SCHEDULE J - INVESTMENTS 

 I)  Government Securities  15,56,58,18  13,66,92,74 

 ii)  Other Trustee Securities  -    -   

 iii)  Shares in other Co-op. Institutions  44,69  44,69 

 iv)  Bonds & NCDs  2,56,19,58  2,55,19,58 

 v)  Mutual Funds  7,00,00  -   

 Total  18,20,22,45  16,22,57,01

As on
31 March 2012

As on
31 March 2013

(   in Thousands)
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SCHEDULES

As on
31 March 2012

As on
31 March 2013

(   in Thousands)

SCHEDULE K - ADVANCES

I Short term loans, cash credits, overdrafts and bills discounted 
i) Govt. and Other approved Securities  3,69,03  3,71,45 
ii) Other Tangible Securities  15,50,38,43  10,80,37,67 
iii) Unsecured Advances / Surety Loans with or without 17,00,50  14,70,03 

Collateral Securities  
Of the advances, amount due from individuals
[P.Y.    1,28,69,43] 1,63,38,28 
Of the advances, amount overdue [P.Y.    53,42,05] 40,18,97 
Considered Bad and Doubtful of recovery   28,39,73 
[P.Y.    26,06,35] [Fully Provided for] 

 Total (I)  15,71,07,96  10,98,79,15 

II Medium Term Loans of which secured against
i) Govt. and Other approved Securities  2,44,75  2,26,11 
ii) Other Tangible Securities  5,08,30,70  4,46,31,90 
iii) Unsecured Advances / Surety Loans with or without 25,46,45  19,18,83 

Collateral Securities  
Of the advances, amount due from individuals  
[P.Y.    1,69,04,87] 2,26,55,00 
Of the advances, amount overdue  [P.Y.    20,64,90] 25,42,30 
Considered Bad and Doubtful of recovery    33,93,68 
[P.Y.    17,58,39] [Fully Provided for] 

 Total (II)  5,36,21,90  4,67,76,84 

III Long Term Loans of which secured against 
i) Govt. and Other approved Securities  78,65  1,05,14 
ii) Other Tangible Securities  12,83,01,98  10,62,43,37 
iii) Unsecured Advances / Surety Loans with or without

Collateral Securities  9,66,02  10,13,85 
Of the advances, amount due from individuals 
[P. Y.    4,94,28,33] 5,79,09,22 
Of the advances, amount overdue [P.Y.    32,94,32] 23,11,09 
Considered Bad and Doubtful of recovery 50,46,16 
[P.Y.     25,88,27] [Fully Provided for] 

 Total (III)  12,93,46,65  10,73,62,36 

 Total (I)+(II)+(III)  34,00,76,51  26,40,18,35 

SCHEDULE L - INTEREST RECEIVABLE 
i) On Investments  59,94,82  62,80,19 
ii) On Staff Housing Loans  4,56,57  4,46,28 

 Total  64,51,39  67,26,47 
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SCHEDULES

P A R T I C U L A R S As on
31 March 2012

As on
31 March 2013

(   in Thousands)

P A R T I C U L A R S 

SCHEDULE N - OTHER ASSETS

 i) Sundry Debtors  41,98  44,99 

 ii) Stock of Stationery  1,20,00  91,53 

 iii) Security Deposits  1,38,02  1,26,49 

 iv) Unused stamps  94  1,29 

 v) Service Tax / CENVAT Receivable  28,23  54,00 

 vi) Deposit for premises  4,79,76  3,37,80 

 vii) Advance for franking  -    1,29,78 

viii) Deferred Tax Asset  3,43,79  4,56,89 

 ix) Forex deal revaluation provision  30,33  -   

 x) Prepaid Expenses  85,42  74,10 

 xi) Advance Income Tax  94,29,37  83,41,51 

 xii) Other receivables  76,34  45,33 

 xiii) Miscellaneous Assets  48,07,37  48,41,89 

 xiv) Forex current assets  -    -   

 Total  1,55,81,55  1,45,45,60 

SCHEDULE O - COST OF ACQUISITION  

 Navjeevan Nagari Sahakari Bank Ltd.  2,98,76  2,98,76 

 Shree Sadguru Jangli Maharaj Sahakari Bank Ltd.  26,30,74  26,30,74 

 Total  29,29,50  29,29,50 

SCHEDULE P - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

 i) Bank Guarantees  99,54,51  94,16,92 

 ii) Letter of Credit / Buyer's Credit  1,11,56,18  94,60,09 

 iii) Forward Exchange Contracts  81,96,06  99,51,57 

 Total  2,93,06,75  2,88,28,58 
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stNotes to financial statements for the year ended 31  March 2013

I. Summary of significant accounting policies:

A. Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in 
accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in 
India. The Bank has prepared these financial statements to 
comply in all material respects with the accounting standards 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), 
to the extent applicable, and applicable statutory provisions 
under the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 & Multi State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002. 

The financial statements have been prepared following the 
going concern concept on an accrual basis under the historical 
cost convention, except for Land and Building acquired on 
merger with Navjeevan Nagari Sahakari Bank Ltd, Pune which 
is carried at revalued amount.

The accounting policies adopted in the current year are 
consistent with those of previous year.

B. Use of Estimates:

The presentation of financial statements are in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles, requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period. Although these estimates are based on management's 
best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
or liabilities in the future periods.

C. Advances:

1. The classification of advances into Standard, Sub-standard, 
Doubtful and Loss assets as well as provisioning on 
Standard Advances and Non-Performing Advances has 
been arrived at in accordance with the Income Recognition, 
Assets Classification and Provisioning Norms prescribed by 
the Reserve Bank of India from time to time till date.

2. The unrealized interest in respect of advances classified as 
Non-Performing Assets is disclosed as "Overdue Interest 
Reserve" as per RBI directives.

D. Revenue recognition (AS - 9) :

Income is accounted on accrual basis as and when it is earned 
except for:

1. The income on Non-Performing Assets is recognized on 
realisation, as per RBI directives.

2. The commission on Letters of Credit / Guarantees, locker 
rent and Dividends received from shares of co-operative 
institutions and mutual funds are accounted on receipt basis.

3. The deposit for services like Telephone, Electricity etc. paid 
to concerned authorities are written off as expenditure in the 
year in which the relevant service, connection is installed.

E. Fixed Assets:

1. Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of accumulated 
depreciation. Cost comprises of purchase price, borrowing 
cost, if eligible, and cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for intended use. Any discount, rebates are 
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. 

2. Gains or Losses arising from derecognition of fixed assets 
are measured as difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and carrying amount of the assets and are 
recognized in the profit and loss account when the asset is 
derecognised.

3. The stamp duty and registration fees paid for premises 
acquired on lease are expensed out to Profit and Loss 
Account.

F. Depreciation on Fixed Assets:

1. The depreciation on fixed assets is calculated on the basis of 
methods and rates as mentioned below:

Furniture and Fixture Written Down value 15%
Plant and Machinery Written Down value 25%
Electrical Fittings Written Down value 15%
Land and Premises Written Down value 10%
Capital expenditure on 
rental premises Written Down value 10%
Office Equipment Written Down value 25%
Vehicles Straight Line 30%
Computers and Peripherals Straight Line 33.33%

(as per RBI
directive)

Particulars
Method of charging

depreciation
Rate of

Depreciation

2. Computer and Peripherals used for providing technological 

services are depreciated on a straight line basis over the 

period of contract. 

st3. The depreciation on assets acquired prior to October 1 , is
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provided for the whole year otherwise the same are 

depreciated at 50% of the normal rates except depreciation 

on vehicles which is provided for full year in the year of 

acquisition irrespective of date of acquisition. 

G. Foreign Exchange Transactions:

The Bank started its foreign exchange operations w.e.f. July 19, 

2010 as authorized dealer under AD Category-I licence issued 

by RBI and the following accounting policy has been adopted by 

the bank for recording foreign currency transaction:

1. All foreign exchange transactions are accounted for at the 

ongoing market rates prevailing on the date of transactions. 

Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities reflected in 

the Balance sheet on the date are at the rates notified by 

Foreign Exchange Dealers Association of India (FEDAI). 

The profit / loss due to revaluation are recognised in the 

Profit and Loss account.

2. The Outstanding spot and forward contracts are revalued at 

the rates notified by FEDAI. The resulting profit / loss is 

included in Profit and Loss account as per FEDAI / RBI 

guidelines.

3. Contingent liabilities on account of foreign exchange 

contracts, guarantees, acceptances, endorsements and other 

obligations denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed 

at closing rates of exchange notified by FEDAI.

H. Investments:

1. Investments other than in those held against Term Deposits 

with Banks / Institutions / Mutual Fund / Certificate of 

Deposits and Shares of Co-op Institutions are classified into 

"Held for Trading" (HFT), "Available for Sale" (AFS), and 

"Held to Maturity" (HTM) categories in accordance with 

the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) guidelines on 

Classification and Valuation of Investments for Primary 

(Urban) Co-operative Banks.

2. Investments under HTM category are carried at Book Value. 

The premium paid, if any, on the investments under this 

category is amortised over the residual life of the security as 

per guidelines of RBI and Policy adopted by Bank.

3. Investments under AFS category are valued scrip-wise at 

lower of Cost or Market Value. Net depreciation, if any, 

under each classification has been provided for. Net 

appreciation, if any, has been ignored. 

4. Market Value, where market quotes are not available, is 

determined on the basis of the "Yield to Maturity" (YTM) 

method as indicated by Primary Dealers Association of 

India (PDAI) jointly with the Fixed Income and Money 

Market Derivatives Association of India (FIMMDA). 

Appreciation/ Depreciation are aggregated for each class of 

securities and net depreciation in aggregate for each 

category as per RBI guidelines is charged to Profit and Loss 

account. Net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

5. The Bank is not holding any investments under HFT 

category.

I. Employee Benefits (AS- 15):

1. The retirement benefits in the form of provident fund are a 

defined contribution scheme. The contributions to the 

provident fund are charged to Profit and Loss account for the 

year when the contributions are due.

2. Accumulated leave is treated as an employee benefit. The 

bank measures the expected cost of such absences as an 

additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the 

unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance 

sheet date. Such compensated absences are provided for 

based on the actuarial valuation at the year-end. The bank is 

maintaining fund under trust deed with Life Insurance 

Corporation of India (LIC) for encashment of absences to 

employees. The premium / contribution paid to LIC to meet 

liability is debited to Profit and Loss account.

3. The bank operates defined benefit plan for its employees, 

viz. gratuity liability. The cost of providing benefits under 

these plans is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation 

at each year-end. The bank has obtained a Unit Linked 

Insurance policy from HDFC and maintaining fund under 

trust deed with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) for 

gratuity payments to employees. The premium / 

contribution paid to HDFC and LIC to meet gratuity liability 

is debited to Profit and Loss account.

4. Ex-Gratia is appropriated out of Net profit in accordance 

with the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002.

 J. Segment Reporting (AS - 17):

1. The Bank's operating businesses are organized and managed 

separately according to the nature of the services provided, 

with each segment representing a different business unit.

2. Income and expenses in relation to the segments are 

categorized based on the items that are individually 

identifiable to the segments.

3. Deposits, Interest paid / payable on deposits, Borrowings 

and interest paid / payable on borrowings are allocated in the 

ratio of average investments to average advances in the 
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segments Treasury and Forex and Other Banking 

operations, respectively.

4. Unallocated expenses include general corporate income and 

expense items which are not allocated to any business 

segment.

K. Lease payment (AS - 19):

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the 

Profit and Loss account on a straight line basis over the lease 

term.

L. Earnings per share (AS - 20):

1. Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit 

for the period after tax attributable to equity shareholders 

(before appropriation) by weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding during the period.

2. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the period are calculated by aggregating the equity 

shares outstanding at the beginning of the period adjusted by 

the number of shares surrendered / forfeited or issued during 

the period multiplied by the time-weighting factor, which is 

the number of days for which the shares are outstanding as a 

proportion of total number of days during the year.

M. Taxes on Income (AS - 22):

1. Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current 

Income Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable 

income for the year in accordance with the provisions of 

Income Tax Act, 1961, and rules framed thereunder.

2. Deferred income tax reflects the impact of timing 

differences between taxable income and accounting income 

originating during the current year and reversal of timing 

differences for earlier year. Deferred tax is measured using 

tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at 

reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all 

taxable timing differences. Deferred tax assets are 

recognized for deductible timing differences only to the 

extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future 

taxable income will be available against which such 

deferred tax assets can be realized. 

II. Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 
31, 2013

A. Appropriation of Profit:
The Bank has given effect for appropriation of profits for the 
year ended March 31, 2013 in the financial statements, subject to 
approval of the shareholders at the AGM. 

Proposed Appropriations:

Particulars
Amount

(    in Lacs)

Net profit for the year ended March 31, 2013 7,499.09
 Previous year balance 0.10 

Total Profit available for appropriation     7,499.19 

Appropriations:  
1 Statutory Reserve - (25%)    1,900.00
2 General Reserve 197.00
3 Investment Fluctuation Reserve 1,000.00
4 Dividend to Shareholders - (15%) - Pro-rata 1,180.00
5 Charitable Fund - (1%) 74.99
6 Members Welfare Fund 10.00
7 Co-operative Education Fund - (1%) 74.99
8 Contingency Reserve - (10%) 750.00
9 Ex-Gratia to Employees 492.06
10 Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve 1,820.00

Balance carried to Balance Sheet        0.15

 Total  7,499.19

B. Tangible Fixed Assets:

1. The fixed asset block for "Plant and Machinery" includes 

proportionate  share  paid  by  the  Bank  aggregating  to             

108.00 Lacs (Previous year  108.00 Lacs)  for jointly 

controlled assets at 'TJSB House' alongwith the other 

owners of the building. The written down value of the said 

assets as at March 31, 2013 is   60.75 Lacs (Previous year         

81.00 Lacs).

2. During the year, the bank has written off service tax paid on 

capital expenditure aggregating to  14.89 Lacs through 

profit and loss account and not capitalized.

C. Balances with Other Banks:

Fixed Deposits with other Banks include deposits aggregating to

 3,024.50 Lacs (Previous year   2,709.17 Lacs) lodged as 

margin money to secure overdraft limits / issuance of guarantees 

in respect of correspondent business. Overdraft limits to meet 

liquidity risk are secured by fixed deposits of   4,950.00 Lacs 

(Previous year     3,400.00 Lacs)

D. Effects to Cost of Acquisition of Merged Banks:

During  the  FY. 2007-08,  the Bank had acquired The 

Navjeevan Nagari Sahakari Bank Ltd, Pune and Shree Sadguru 

Jangli Maharaj Sahakari Bank Ltd, Pune.  In accordance with 

the merger order  passed by the Office of the Commissioner for 

Co-operation and Registrar of Co-operative Societies, M.S., 

Pune 411 001 dated July 16, 2007 and August 18, 2007 

l,

<<

 

`
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H. Related party disclosure:

The Bank is a co-operative society under the Multi-State Co-

operative Societies Act, 2002 and there are no Related Parties 

requiring a disclosure under the Accounting Standard - 18, 

issued by the ICAI, other than Key Management Personnel, viz. 

Mr. Satish R. Utekar, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the 

Bank for F.Y.2012-13. However in terms of RBI circular dated 

March 29, 2003, the CEO being a single party coming under the 

category, no further details therein need to be disclosed.

 I. Segment Reporting as at March 31, 2013:

                                

respectively alongwith 'No Objection Certificate' issued by the 

RBI. 

As directed  by said merger orders, Cost of Acquisition of 

2,929.50 Lacs was completely provided for till March 31, 

2012. The bank will maintain memorandum records for the 

subsequent five years to comply with the order of merger. 

E. Prior Period items (AS - 5):

Prior period expenses debited to Profit and Loss account are as 

follows:

  

F. Investments:

During the year, Bank has shifted securities from AFS category 

to HTM category and vice versa. In accordance with RBI norms, 

transfer of securities is done at acquisition cost/ book value / 

market value on the date of transfer, whichever is least, and the 

depreciation of   51.70 Lacs (Previous year   44.43 Lacs) on 

such transfer is charged to Profit and Loss account. 

Income from sale of securities comprised of 228.52 Lacs 

(Previous year 96.92 Lacs) on sale of securities under AFS 

category.

During the financial year 2012-13, the bank sold some securities 

held under HTM category having book value of    14,809.29 

lacs, aggregating to 17.4% of the book value of investments held 

in HTM category as at April 1, 2012. On March 31, 2013, the 

market value of securities held under HTM category was higher 

than their book value.

G. Employee Benefits:

Salaries and Allowances include an amount of   296.20 Lacs 

(Previous year  204.72 Lacs) contributed by the Bank on 

account of contribution towards  Provident Fund.

Actuarial assessment of Gratuity Fund & Leave encashment:

 

co

`  `

` 

` 

                   Particulars Gratuity Leave Encashment

March 31,
2013

March 31,
2012

March 31,
2013

March 31,
2012

Assumptions
Discount Rate 8.12% 8.60% 8.12% 8.60%
Rate of increase in compensation 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

Changes in present value of obligations
Present Value of Obligation as on  
April 1,2012 905.66 866.95 388.20 425.64 
Interest Cost 75.79 67.51 29.20 33.62 
Current Service Cost 108.03 73.93 73.75 48.66 
Benefits paid (48.68) (107.27) (97.33) (41.24)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 261.32 4.54 336.77 (78.49)

Present Value of Obligation as on 
March 31,2013 1,302.12 905.66 730.59 388.20 
Changes in fair value of plan assets     
Fair Value of Plan assets as on  
April 1,2012 1,010.25 999.69 - -
Adjustment to opening plan assets (21.07) - - -
Expected Return on plan asset 100.15 85.35 13.08 -
Contributions 295.76 4.50 387.89 41.24 
Benefit Paid (48.68) (107.27) (97.33) (41.24)
Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets (100.15) 27.99 (13.08) -

Fair Value of Plan  Assets  as on 
March 31,2013 1,236.27 1,010.25 290.56 -

Particulars
Treasury &

Forex
Other Banking

Operations Total

Segment Revenue 20,859.32 41,049.02 61,908.35 
 (17,478.15) (31,022.97) (48,501.12)
Segment Result 3,358.36 7,412.28 10,770.64 
 (3,019.95) (6,160.70) (9,180.65)
Unallocated Expenses - - 940.38 
   (697.02)

Net Profit before Income Tax and 
Appropriations - - 9,830.27 

  (8,483.63)
Income Tax ( including Deferred tax) - - 2,331.18 
   (2,474.29)
Net Profit before Appropriations - - 7,499.09 
   (6,009.34)

Segment Assets 2,48,524.72 3,83,798.29 6,32,323.01 
 (2,35,252.29) (2,97,620.73) (5,32,873.02)
Unallocated Assets - - 12,702.66 
   (11,727.90)

Total Assets - - 6,45,025.67 
   (5,44,600.92)
Segment Liabilities 2,47,440.83 3,25,984.53 573,425.36 
 (2,27,035.63) (2,54,353.99) (4,81,389.62)
Unallocated Liabilities - - 71,600.31 
   (63,211.30)

Total Liabilities - - 6,45,025.67 
  (5,44,600.92)

(    in Lacs)

(    in Lacs)

Provision for Restructured Advances 83.50

Legal and Professional Charges 15.82

Incentive to Staff (Third Party Product) 9.75

Postage ,Telegram and Telephone Charges 2.85

Advertisement 2.70

Repairs and Maintenance 0.26

Total 114.88

(    in Lacs)

Particulars Amount
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Notes:

a) The Bank operates as a single unit in India, hence separate 

information regarding geographical segment is not given. 

b) The above segments are reported considering the nature of 

the products / services under attributable risk / returns, 

overall organizational structure and internal Management 

reporting system of the Bank.

c) The previous year's figures are indicated in brackets.

 J. Earning Per Share: 

K. Deferred Tax Asset:

The Deferred tax asset as at March 31, 2013 and break-up of 

components are as follows:

L. Intangible Fixed Assets:

The fixed asset block for "Computer peripherals" includes 

Computer Software the details of which are as follows:

The said block of "Computer peripherals" includes banking 

applications developed by Neorithm Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

aggregating to   54.90 Lacs (Previous year   23.63 Lacs). In 

respect of the software developed from Neorithm Technologies 

Private Limited, source code of the software has been handed 

over to the TJSB Bank for its exclusive use.

M. Impairment of Assets:

There is no material impairment of any of assets in the opinion of 

the Bank and as such no provision under Accounting Standard - 

28 issued by ICAI is required.

N. Contingent Liabilities:

1. All letters of credit / guarantees are sanctioned to customers 

with approved credit limits in place. The liability thereon is 

dependent on terms of contractual obligations, 

devolvement, raising demand by concerned parties and the 

amount being called up. These amounts are collateralized by 

margins, counter-guarantees and secured charges.

2. The Bank has filed writ petition in the High Court against an 

NA Tax demand of    31.07 Lacs raised in the year 2005. The 

Bank has paid an amount of    27.65 Lacs under protest. The 

amount paid to the authorities was accounted as an expense 

in the Profit and Loss account in the year of payment.

3. The Bank has filed writ petition in High Court in respect of 

Property Tax on rental premises at Thane (East), 

Vartaknagar and Wagle estate challenging the fixation of 

ratable value.  The Bank has made payment of property tax 

assessed by the Thane Municipal Corporation (TMC) 

aggregating to    106.91 Lacs under protest. The amount 

paid to TMC was accounted as an expense in the Profit and 

Loss account in the year of payment. The outcome of the 

petitions being uncertain, hence the bank is unable to 

quantify any further liability which may arise.

4. The Kalyan Dombivli Municipal Corporation (KDMC) has 

raised a demand towards property tax of the Kalyan branch 

premises for the period April 2010 to March 2013. The bank 

has paid an amount of    4.02 lacs pertaining to the financial 

year 2012-13 and accounted as an expense in the Profit and 

Loss account. The Bank is of the opinion that the balance 

demand of    9.85 lacs is not sustainable since property tax 

is chargeable with prospective effect.

5. Two cases have been filed against Bank by ex-employees 

and Forty Two by borrowers and other. The liability 

contingent thereon is not quantifiable at present.

O. Capital commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 

capital accounts as at March 31, 2013 aggregate to    145.07 

Lacs (Previous year     215.33 Lacs).

`

`

Depreciation on Assets 169.06 (99.30) 69.76

Leave Encashment 119.95 (11.80) 108.15

Voluntary Retirement Scheme 83.61 (41.96) 41.65

Lease Rent Payable 84.27 39.96 124.23

Net Deferred Tax Asset 456.89 (113.10) 343.79

Particulars
Deferred tax
Asset as at

March 31, 2012

Addition /
 (Reversal) 

during the year

Deferred tax
Asset as at

March 31,2013

(    in Lacs)

(    in Lacs)

                          Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Gross Block at the beginning of the year 748.57 627.17 

Add : Additions during the year 178.85 121.40 

Less : Write off / Sale - -

 Gross Block at the end of the year 927.42 748.57 

Amortisation at the beginning of the year 563.60 451.62 

Add : Additions during the year 151.08 111.98 

Less : Write off / Sale - - 

Amortisation at the end of the year 714.69 563.60 

Net Closing Balance 212.73 184.97 

Net Profit after Tax attributable to Equity shareholders 7,499.08 6,009.37
 ( before appropriations) (    in Lacs)

Weighted Average Equity No. of Shares ( Actuals) 1,56,86,714 1,22,71,251

Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) (   ) 47.81 48.97

 
2012-13 2011-12Particulars



51 42 Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue  

P.   Disclosures as per RBI Guidelines :

Sr. No. Particulars 31.03.2013 31.03.2012

thDisclosure norms in terms of RBI circular dt. 30  October, 2002
(    in Lacs)

1 Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR)    
A Capital Tier 1 40,081.53 35,419.85

 B Capital Tier 2 9,870.96 7,836.38

 C Total of Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital 49,952.49 43,256.23

 D Total Risk Weighted Assets 3,70,665.55 2,87,782.49

 E Capital to Risk Assets Ratio 13.48% 15.03%

2  Investments   

 A Book Value 1,82,022.45 1,62,257.00

 B Face Value 1,81,321.89 1,62,363.29

 C Market Value 1,83,548.24 1,58,790.60

 3  Advance Against   
 A Real Estate 7,440.90 1,502.48

 B Construction Business 6,340.83 4,646.36

 C Housing 42,608.93 36,194.42

 4  Advance against Shares & Debentures - 2.09

 5  Advance to Directors, their relatives, companies 
firms in which they are interested:   

 A Fund Based   

 i Outstanding at the beginning of the year 224.42 63.49

 ii Additions during the year - 160.93

 iii Recovery during the year 68.74 -

 iv Outstanding at the end of the year (*) 155.68 224.42

 B Non Fund based (Guarantees, L/Cs etc) - -

  (*) Amounts pertain to loans to Directors, their 
relatives, companies, firms in which they are 
interested against Term Deposits 155.80 -

6  Average Cost of Deposits 7.73% 7.09%

7  NPAs   

 A Gross NPAs 11,279.58 6,953.01

 B Net NPAs 0 (**) 0

  (**) - subject to approval of appropriations at AGM

8  Movement in NPAs   

 A Gross NPAs   

 i At the beginning of the year 6,953.01 6,811.83

 ii Additions during the year 6,310.01 1,957.53

 iii Less: Closed / Recovered / Written Off 1,983.44 1,816.35

 iv At the end of the year 11,279.58 6,953.01

  B Net NPAs   

 i At the beginning of the year - -

 ii At the end of the year -(**) -

  (**) - subject to approval of appropriations at AGM
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thDisclosure norms in terms of RBI circular dt. 30  October, 2002

Sr. No. Particulars 31.03.2013 31.03.2012

(    in Lacs)

9  Profitability :   

A Interest income as a percentage of average working funds 10.18% 9.73%

 B Non- interest income as a percentage of average working funds 0.67% 0.65%

 C Operating profit as a percentage of average working funds 1.98% 2.25%

 D Return on Average Assets 1.31% 1.29%

 E Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee 863.12 829.59

 F Profit per employee 7.43 7.14

 10  Movements in provisions for Advances   

 A Bad and Doubtful Debt Reserve   

  At the beginning of the year 8,776.08 8,581.22

  Add: Provisions made during the year 700.00 725.00

  Add: Amount appropriated from Profit** 1,820.00 -

  Less: Closed / Recovered / Written Off 9.57 141.96

  Less: Adjusted against cost of acquisition of merged bank - 388.18

  At the end of the year 11,286.51 8,776.08

(**) - subject to approval of appropriations at AGM

   B Contingent Provision against Standard Assets   

  At the beginning of the year 949.90 724.90

  Add: Provisions made during the year 300.00 225.00

  At the end of the year 1,249.90 949.90

  11  Movements in provisions for Investments   

A Provision for Bad and Doubtful Investment   

  At the beginning of the year 44.35 44.35

  At the end of the year 44.35 44.35

  B Contingent provision for depreciation in Investment   

  At the beginning of the year 867.83 -

  Add: Provisions made during the year - 867.83

  Less : Expenditure provision & contingencies written back 867.83 -

  At the end of the year - 867.83

 C Investment Depreciation Reserve   

  At the beginning of the year - 446.46

  Less: Transfer to Expenditure-Provisions & Contingencies - 446.46

  At the end of the year - -

 12 A Foreign Currency Liabilities 1,426.94 1,967.71

 B Foreign Currency Assets 6,572.52 4,034.12

 13  DICGC Premium paid upto Mar-13 Mar-12
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Disclosure as per RBI master Circular No. UBD.BPD.(PCB).MC.No.8/16/20.000/2006-07
thdated 12  July, 2006

i)     Composition of Non-SLR investments (    in Lacs)

No. Issuer Amount 

Extent of below
Investment

grade
Securities

Extent of
Unlisted

Securities

Extent of
Unrated

Securities

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

1 PSUs 1,768.10 - - -
(1,768.10) (-) (-) (-)

2 FIs 11,585.00 - - -
(12,985.00) (-) (-) (-)

3 Nationalised Banks 4,000.00 - - -
(4,000.00) (-) (-) (-)

4 Mutual Fund 700.00 - - -
(-) (-) (-) (-)

5 Others 8,311.17 - - -
(6,811.17) (-) (-) (-)

6 Provision held towards depreciation - - - -
(-) (-) (-) (-)

 Total 26,364.27 - - -
(25,564.27) (-) (-) (-)

Note: The previous year's figures are indicated in brackets.

(    in Lacs)ii)    Non Performing Non-SLR investments

                        Particulars March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012

Opening Balance 44.35 44.35

Additions during the year - -

Reductions during the year - -

Closing balance 44.35 44.35

Total Provision held 44.35 44.35

iii)   Repo Transactions (    in Lacs)

Particulars
Minimum

outstanding
during the year

Maximum 
outstanding

during the year

Daily average
outstanding

during the year

Outstanding
as on

31.03.2013

Securities sold under Repo - - - -
(-) (4433.33) (111.08) (-)

Securities Purchased under - - - -
Reverse Repo (-) (-) (-) (-)

1. Interest Rate Future (as per RBI Circular UBD(PCB)BPD Cir No.17/13.01.000/2009-10 October 28, 2009. The bank has not 
undertaken any transaction during the Financial Year 2012-13. 

2. The previous year's figures are indicated in brackets.
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(    in Lacs)

The capital requirements for:  

·        Interest rate risk 2,369.98 1,900.22

·       Equity position risk - -

·       Foreign exchange risk 22.50 22.50

Particulars
2011-122012-13

Amount of Capital Required  

(    in Lacs)

Housing
Loans

Particulars of Accounts Restructured as on
31.03.2012

SME Debt
Restructuring

Others

Standard advances   No. of Borrowers - 6 -

restructured Amount outstanding - 5,547.95 -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - 83.50 -

Sub standard advances No. of Borrowers - - -

restructured Amount outstanding - - -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - - -

Doubtful advances No. of Borrowers - - -

restructured Amount outstanding - - -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - - -

TOTAL No. of Borrowers - 6 -

Amount outstanding - 5,547.95 -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - 83.50 -

Restructured Advances 

Capital charge on Market risk:

Market risk in Trading book - Standardised Modified 

Duration Approach:

Qualitative disclosures

(a)  The general qualitative disclosure requirement for market 

risk

Strategies and Processes :

Investment Policy which includes Market Risk Management is 

in line with the RBI regulations vide circular UBD.BPD.(PCB). 

Cir. No. 42/09.11.600/2009-10 dated February 8, 2010 and 

business requirements

The overall objective of  market risk management is to enhance 

profitability by improving the bank's competitive advantage and 

mitigate loss from all types of market risk loss events.

Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting/Measurement Systems:

The Bank has regulatory / internal limits for various Instruments 

in place.

Various exposure limits for market risk management such as 

Overnight limit, VaR limit, Aggregate Gap limit, Investment 

limit etc. are in place

The portfolio covered by Standardised Modified Duration 

Approach for computation of Capital charge for Market Risk 

includes investment portfolio held under AFS and Forex Open 

positions.

Quantitative disclosures:
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For Joshi & Karandikar
Chartered Accountants
FRN - 104355W

For TJSB Sahakari Bank Ltd

Mr. V. A. Vaishampayan
Chairman

Mr. B. V. Date
Vice Chairman

Mr. S. R. Utekar
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. V. M.Karandikar
Partner 

Membership No. 042744
Firm Reg.No.104355W
Statutory Auditors

Date: April 9, 2013

Q.  Previous year figures:

The bank has reclassified previous year figures to confirm to this year's classification.

(    in Lacs)

Housing
Loans

Particulars of Accounts Restructured as on
31.03.2013

SME Debt
Restructuring

Others

Standard advances   No. of Borrowers - 8 -

restructured Amount outstanding - 8,061.53 -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - 93.82 -

Sub standard advances No. of Borrowers - - -

restructured Amount outstanding - - -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - - -

Doubtful advances No. of Borrowers - - -

restructured Amount outstanding - - -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - - -

TOTAL No. of Borrowers - 8 -

Amount outstanding - 8,061.53 -

Sacrifice (diminution in the fair value) - 93.82 -



To,

The Members of TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited

(Under Section 31 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 & 

Section  73 (4)  of  Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 

2002 & Rule 27 of Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 

2002)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 

TJSB Sahakari Bank Limited, which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at March 31, 2013, the Profit and Loss account and 

Cash Flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation of these 

financial statements in accordance with the Multi-State Co-

operative Societies Act, 2002, and rules made there under and 

the Banking Regulations Act, 1949 (as applicable) ("the 

Acts"). This responsibility includes the design, 

implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to 

the preparation of the financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS' REPORT 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the Bank's preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 

the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion.

Opinion

Subject to our comments and observations contained in the 

Audit Memorandum enclosed herewith, in our opinion and to 

the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, the financial statements read with significant 

accounting policies and notes thereon give the information 

required by the Acts in the manner so required and give a true 

and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the 

Bank as at March 31, 2013;

(b) in the case of the Profit and Loss account, of the profit for 

the year ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow statement, of the cash flows 

for the year ended on that date.

JOSHI & KARANDIKAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Head Office I - 401, Guruprasad, Opp. Garden Nursery, B. Patil Road, Near Charai Cross, Charai, Thane, (W) - 400601
Tel: 25361821 / 25337803, E-mail : ho@cajoshikarandikar.com, Website : www.cajoshikarandikar.com 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Subject to our comments and observations contained in the 

Audit Report of even date, we report that:

1) The schedules giving the particulars referred to in Rule 

27(3) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) to the extent applicable are 

attached to this report.

2)  (a) We have obtained all the information and 

explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required 

by Rule 27 of the Multi State Co-operative Societies 

Rules, 2002, the bye laws and the law have been kept 

by the bank, so far as it appears from our examination 

of those books and proper returns adequate for the 

purpose of our audit have been received from the 

branches of the bank.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss account and Cash 

Flow statement dealt with by this report are in 

agreement with books of accounts.

 (d) The transactions of the Bank, which have come to our 

notice, have generally been within the competence of 

the Bank and are in compliance with RBI guidelines / 

directives.

For Joshi & Karandikar
Chartered Accountants 

FRN - 104355W 

Vinod M. Karandikar
Partner

Membership No. 042744

Statutory Auditors

Place : Thane

Dated: April 9, 2013
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2013st

(   in Thousands)

31 March 201231 March 2013

A Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit after Tax (before Appropriation)  74,99,08  60,09,34

Add: 

Income Tax  22,18,08  27,05,16

Interest on Borrowings  11,93,12  15,18,54

Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts  7,00,00  7,25,00

Contingent provision against Standard Assets  3,00,00  2,25,00

Special Reserve u/s. 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act,1961  3,25,00  3,75,00 

Amortisation of Cost of Acquired Banks  -    2,98,36

Loss on sale of assets  30,06  16,88 

Amortisation of premium on securities  2,17,46  2,76,59 

Provision for Miscellaneous Assets  -    5,00 

Deferred Tax   1,13,09  -   

Expenditure Provisions & Contingencies  51,70  4,65,80

Provision for Restructed Advances  93,82  -   

Loss on sale of HTM securities  49,42  -   

Forex Deal provision - Spot / Swap  -    34,40

Depreciation on Fixed Assets  14,46,13  67,37,91  11,76,58  78,22,34 

Less:

Expenditure Provision & Contingencies Written Back  8,67,83  -   

Profit on Sale of HTM securities  75,17  -   

Forex Deal provision - Spot / Swap  45,62  -   

Income from sale of securities  2,28,51  96,91

Deferred Tax   -    12,17,15  2,30,87  3,27,79 

Adjustments for

Increase in Deposits and Other Accounts  9,63,19,09  8,73,38,97 

Increase /(Decrease) in Other Liabilities  15,75,84  (3,26,63)

Increase in Advances  (7,60,67,72)  (6,50,02,01)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Assets  1,42,32  (13,95,52)

(Increase) / Decrease in  Investments  (2,16,45,65)  (3,09,31,35)

Income Tax paid  (26,23,26)  (22,99,38)  (24,83,04)  (1,27,99,59)

Cash Generated from Operating Activities  1,07,20,46  7,04,29
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stCASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH 2013

(   in Thousands)

31 March 201231 March 2013

B Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets                                (21,52,00)  (18,74,51)

Sale of Fixed Asset  21,79  13,49 

Cash Generated from Investing Activities  (21,30,21)  (18,61,02)

C Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Share Capital issued (Net)  14,68,21  16,98,99 

Dividend paid  (9,04,58)  (6,87,21)

Increase /(Decrease) in Borrowings  (75,98,60)  58,34,61 

Interest paid on Borrowings  (12,57,31)  (15,19,32)

Cash Generated from Financing Activities  (82,92,28)  53,27,07 

D Net Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  2,97,97  41,70,34 

E Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning                                               7,15,37,23 6,73,66,89

of the year    

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D+E)  7,18,35,21  7,15,37,23

Break-up of Cash & Cash Equivalents                                                                   As at                                           As at 

         31.03.2013                                     31.03.2012

Cash in hand  27,51,97  21,14,94 

Balances with Banks:

In Current Accounts  3,26,37,49  2,44,82,29 

In Deposits Accounts  3,64,45,75  4,49,40,00 

Total  7,18,35,21  7,15,37,23

For TJSB Sahakari Bank Ltd.
As per our report of even date 

For Joshi & Karandikar 

Chartered Accountants 

Mr. V. A. Vaishampayan

Chairman

Mr. B. V. Date

Vice Chairman

Mr. S. R. Utekar

Chief Executive Officer

Shri. V. M. Karandikar

Partner 

Statutory Auditors

Mem. No. 042744 

Firm Reg. No. 104355W 

Date : 09.04.2013 
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meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer 01.04.2012 les 31.03.2013 ³ee keÀeUeleerue GHeefmLeleer

1 Þeer. efJeÐeeOej De. JewMebHee³eve 13 12 72 63

2 Þeer. Yee. Jee. oeles 13 13 72 69

3 meew. De. je. DeeHeìs 13 10 23 16

4 Þeer. j. Keg. DeiejJeeue 13 13 47 44

5 meew. He¨ee yee. De³³ej 13 10 49 37

6 Þeer. j. Keg. keÀveeveer 13 12 36 34

7 Þeer. ce. Oe. Keglee[s 13 12 - ö

8 Þeer. vee. o. ceeb[ies 13 13 11  9

9 Þeer. meer. veboieesHeeU cesveve 13 13 48 34

10 Þeer. efJe. ce. HelkeÀer 13 12 49 44

11 Þeer. He´. o. þeketÀj 13 12 24 20

12 Þeer. efJeveesokegÀceej yevmeue 13  9  9 6

meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U GHeefmLeleer        Ghemeefcel³eeb®eer GHeefmLeleer

 DeHesef#ele GHeefmLeleer   He´l³e#e GHeefmLeleer    DeHesef#ele GHeefmLeleer   He´l³e#e GHeefmLeleer

De.
ke´À. meb®eeuekeÀe®es veebJe
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BYE-LAW AMENDMENTS

Sr.
No.

Bye
Law
No.

Text of present Bye Law
Purpose for amending

Bye-Law

Text of Bye-Law after incorporation 

of proposed Amendments

1 2 REGISTERED OFFICE AND  

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS:- PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS:- address and 

The Registered office and principal The Registered office and principal

place of business of the Bank is and place of business of the Bank is and

shall be situated in Thane District shall be situated in Thane District 

which is presently situated at which is presently situated at TJSB

TJSB House, Plot No. B - 5, House, Plot No. B - 5, Road No. 2,

Road No.2, Wagle Industrial Estate, Wagle Industrial Estate, Thane West,

Thane West - 400 604 State of Maharashtra - 400 604. 

Electronic Address: 

Web Site:  www.tjsb.co.in 

E-mail : response@tjsb.co.in

2 3 AREA OF OPERATION: - AREA OF OPERATION:- To include additional 

The Area of operation of the Bank The Area of Operation of the Bank states in the area

is and shall be entire state of is and shall be entire state of of operation. 

Maharashtra, Karnataka, Goa and Maharashtra, Karnataka, Goa, Gujarat,

Gujarat. For any revision in this Madhya Pradesh, Andhra Pradesh 

regard, prior approval of the Reserve and Delhi. For any revision in this 

Bank of India as also Registering regard, prior approval of the Reserve

Authority shall be necessary. Bank of India as also Registering

(Amended w.e.f. Annual General Authority shall be necessary.

Meeting dated 5.06.2011)

3 4 DEFINITIONS:- DEFINITIONS:- To insert definition of 

v)    MEMBER:- v)    MEMBER:- Active Member for

participation in the

No existing clause. (b)  ‘Active Member' means one affairs of the Bank. 

who participates in the affairs of   

the Bank and utilizes the minimum 

level of services or products of the 

Bank as may be prescribed in the 

Bye-Law No. 10 (2). 

4 4 DEFINITIONS:- xxiv)   'Willful Defaulter' means a To insert definition of 

Member who commits default as Willful Defaulter

REGISTERED OFFICE AND To insert electronic

to mention

detail address of

principal place 

of business.
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Sr.
No.

Bye
Law
No.

Text of present Bye Law
Purpose for amending

Bye-Law

Text of Bye-Law after incorporation 

of proposed Amendments

No existing clause. mentioned in the directives and 

guidelines issued by the Reserve guidelines of the Reserve  

Bank of India from time to time Bank of India. 

5 4 DEFINITIONS:- xxxi)   'Employee' means an To insert definition of 

individual who is engaged in the Employee to bring

No existing clause. employment of the Bank under  clarity in employer -

contractual relationship with the  employee relationship.

Bank as an Employer.

6 4 DEFINITIONS:- xxxii)  ‘Minimum Level of Services' To insert definition of 

means minimum level of  

No existing clause. A)   To maintain with the Bank services to be availed

       average daily balance during the by member to classify

       previous financial year as under:  as an Active Member                                                                                                                                 

for participation in the

i)     SB Account     5,000/-  OR affairs of the Bank.

ii)    Current Account    10,000/-  OR

iii)   Fixed or other deposits 

           1,00,000/-  OR

iv)   Loan/s of any type for an amount 

       aggregating to    1,00,000/-

7 5 OBJECTS AND FUNCTIONS:- OBJECTS AND FUNCTIONS:- To insert the words 

The objectives of the Bank are to The objectives of the Bank are to 'products and services to

encourage thrift and to promote encourage thrift and to promote its members', in view of
thco-operation amongst its members co-operation amongst its members 97  Constitution

and to engage in all or any one or  and to provide its products and Amendment.

more forms of business as services to its members and to engage 

enumerated in section 6 of the in all or any one or more forms of 

Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and business as enumerated in section 6 of 

as amended from time to time and the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and 

in particular to carry out/ engage in as amended from time to time and in

the following forms of business / particular to carry out / engage in the

activities, namely: following forms of business / 

activities, namely:

8 9 AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL:- AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL:- Considering the growth in

according to the
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Sr.
No.

Bye
Law
No.

Text of present Bye Law
Purpose for amending

Bye-Law

Text of Bye-Law after incorporation 

of proposed Amendments

The authorised share capital of the 

Bank is    200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Bank is     500,00,00,000/- (Rupees plan the authorised share

Two Hundred Crores only) divided Five Hundred Crores only) divided capital is proposed to be

into  4,00,00,000/- (Four Crores only)  into   10,00,00,000   (Ten Crores) increased.

shares of the face value of      50/- shares of the face value of      50/-

each (Approved in the AGM held each. 

on 11/07/2010),

9 10 1.    ORDINARY MEMBER:- 1.    ORDINARY MEMBER:- In view of increase in

a)    Any person who resides within a)    Any person who resides within minimum subscribing

the area of operation of the Bank or the area of operation of the Bank or shares as per proposed

is gainfully engaged in any occupation is gainfully engaged in any occupation amendment in

in the area of operation of the Bank in the area of operation of the Bank Bye-Law No. 10 (1) (e).

and who genuinely needs the services and who genuinely needs the services 

provided by the Bank and whose provided by the Bank and whose

interest does not conflict with the interest does not conflict with the

interest of the Bank may be admitted interest of the Bank may be admitted 

as a member of the Bank and who has as a member of the Bank and who has

submitted his application subscribing submitted his application subscribing

minimum 10 fully paid-up shares minimum 40 fully paid-up shares

of the Bank. of the Bank.

10 10 1.    ORDINARY MEMBER:- _________ The said sub-clause is

a)    ii)   A Multi-State Co-operative proposed to be deleted 

Society and any Co-operative to comply with the 

Society, restrictions stipulated 

in Part V Section 56 

of Banking Regulation 

Act, 1949.

11 10 1.    ORDINARY MEMBER:- _________ The said sub-clause is

proposed to be deleted

a)    xiv)  Registered Society to comply with the 

restrictions stipulated 

in Part V Section 

56 of Banking 

Regulation 

Act, 1949.

The authorised share capital of the business and expansion
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Sr.
No.

Bye
Law
No.

Text of present Bye Law
Purpose for amending

Bye-Law

Text of Bye-Law after incorporation 

of proposed Amendments

12 10 1.    ORDINARY MEMBER:-

e)    All existing ordinary members e)    All existing ordinary members minimum subscribing

holding less than ten shares shall holding less than forty shares shall shares.

subscribe to such additional number subscribe to such additional number 

of shares as may be necessary to of shares as may be necessary to make

make up the required minimum up the required minimum number of

number of ten shares within six forty shares within six months from

months from the date of coming the date of coming into force of this

into force of these Bye-laws. amended Bye-law. 

13 10 MEMBERSHIP:- MEMBERSHIP:- To specify the conditions

2)    ACTIVE MEMBER for being an Active

No existing Clause 'Active Member' means a person Member.

who fulfills all the following criteria:-

a)    Has been admitted as an 

       Ordinary Member under the 

       Bye-Laws of the Bank;

b)    Attends at least one General  

       Body Meeting in the previous  

       three consecutive years;

c)    Utilises the minimum level of 

       services as provided in the 

       Bye-Law No. 4 (xxxii).

14 11 APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP In view of increase in 

AND ITS DISPOSAL:- AND ITS DISPOSAL:- minimum subscribing

1)    ORDINARY MEMBERSHIP:- 1)    ORDINARY MEMBERSHIP:- shares as per the 

The application for membership The application for membership proposed amendment in

of the Bank shall be submitted by of the Bank shall be submitted by Bye-Law No. 10 (1)(e).

the applicant to the Bank in such the applicant to the Bank in such 

form, and with such non-refundable form, and with such non-refundable  

admission fees as prescribed by admission fees, as prescribed by 

the Board. The Applicant shall the Board. The Applicant shall 

also  subscribe for at least ten fully also subscribe for at least forty fully 

paid shares at the time of paid shares at the time of 

application. application.

15 11 3)    JOINT MEMBERSHIP:- 3)    JOINT MEMBERSHIP:- In view of increase in

1.    ORDINARY MEMBER:- In view of increase in
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The Joint Member has to subscribe The Joint Member has to subscribe shares as per the

to at least 10 Shares at least 40 Shares proposed amendment in 

Bye-Law No. 10 (1)(e).

16 11 APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP To define process for

AND ITS DISPOSAL:- AND ITS DISPOSAL:- identifying member as 

4)   IDENTIFICATION OF MEMBER per KYC guidelines of 

No existing Bye-Law (KYC NORMS OF RBI TO MEMBERS) the Reserve Bank of

India.

a)    For all transactions with the Bank,

identification of member is necessary.

For identification, the individual 

member shall comply with the Know 

Your Customer (KYC) guidelines 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India 

from time to time and duly adopted 

and approved by the Board of 

Directors of the Bank.

b)    The existing members shall also 

comply with such KYC norms.

Identification of the member of the 

Bank shall be done by a competent 

authority appointed by the Board, 

through the official identity card, 

which will be issued free of charge 

for the first time by the Bank.

c)    Whenever a member desires to 

exercise his right as a member of the 

Bank such as attending the General 

Body Meeting and voting therein, 

collecting annual dividends and/or 

occasional gifts, execution of 

agreements as borrower or guarantor, 

voting at an election of Director/s of 

the Bank and for such other purpose 

minimum subscribing
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which bank may notify from time to 

time, the member may be asked to 

produce his identity card.

d)    When unable to produce such 

identity card on demand, his 

membership right whatsoever may  

be refused by the Bank at that time.

e)     A duplicate identity card may be 

obtained from the Bank in case of loss 

or mutilation of the original card. 

However duplicate card shall be 

issued at a nominal cost as may be 

determined by the Board, from 

time to time.

f)     The Board will be permitted to 

explore the use of advanced 

technology for the issuance of 

electronic digital cards so as to 

reduce use of paper. 

Note: In this Bye-Law competent 

authority means any person/s 

nominated by the Board for 

this purpose.

17 12 RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF

MEMBERS:- MEMBERS:- & Duties of Ordinary

1)    i)  Right to vote in the General 1)    i)  Right to vote in the General Members.

Meetings of the Bank. However no Meetings of the Bank, except right 

member shall be permitted to vote to vote for the purpose of election 

by proxy; of the Board of the Bank. 

However no member shall be 

permitted to vote by proxy;

Provided that an Ordinary Member 

who fulfills the criteria, as laid down 

in Bye-Law No. 10(2), shall have the 

To bring clarity in Rights
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right to vote in the General Meeting 

for the purpose of election of the 

Board of the Bank; 

18 12 RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF To bring clarity in Rights

MEMBERS:- MEMBERS:- & Duties of Members.

1)    vi)  To attend at least one 

No existing clauses. General Body Meeting in the  

previous three consecutive years, 

       vii)  To utilize minimum level of 

services every year as prescribed in 

the Bye-Law No. 4 (xxxii),

Provided that a Member who does 

not attend at least one meeting of 

General Body  as above and/or does 

not utilize minimum level of services 

as prescribed in the Bye-Laws shall 

be classified as non-active member. 

The Bank shall communicate such 

classification as non-active member 

to the concerned Member within 

30 days from the date of close of 

the financial year;

       viii) An Active Member can 

exercise all other rights of Ordinary  

Member as mentioned in these 

Bye-Laws.

19 14 DISQUALIFICATION OF DISQUALIFICATION FOR In view of proposed

ORDINARY MEMBERSHIP:- ORDINARY MEMBERSHIP:- amendment as  per

ii)    He/she/it does not attend the ii)    He/she/it does not attend the Bye-Law No. 10 (2).

three consecutive General Meetings three consecutive General Meetings 

and such absence was not condoned after being classified as non-active 

by the members attending the member ; or

meeting or 

20 14 iii)    Has not used any of the services _________ Deleted since already
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of the Bank for two consecutive included in proposed 

years ; amendment as per 

Bye-Law No. 4 (xxxii)

21 21 GENERAL BODY:- _________ Deleted since

iii.   In case of Multi-State redundant.

Co-operative Society or other 

Co-operative Society the same shall 

be represented in General Meeting 

by the person as prescribed in 

sec. 38(3) of the Act.

22 22 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:- ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:- The sub-clause is

ii)    Notice: I)    Notice: inserted in view of

No existing clause e)    The notice of the General proposed amendment to 

Meeting shall be accompanied  Bye Law at No. 10(2)(b).

by an unsigned Certificate of the 

Attendance. This certificate shall 

be signed by the Authorised person 

of the Bank at the time of General 

Meeting, which shall be the 

conclusive proof of attendance.

23 22 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:- ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:- To bring clarity in the 

IV)  Voting III)  Voting:- process of voting

d)    In case of partnership firm, A)   ORIDINARY MEMBER:- through representative.

company, HUF, trust, society, or any d) Individual Members shall vote in 

other body corporate, the voting right person, while a Firm or a Company 

shall be exercised by the partner, or HUF or Trust or LLP or any Body

director, karta, trustee, office bearer Corporate constituted under any

or any authorised representative of law for the time being in force or

such person.  In case of such persons, Government which is a member,

the concerned partner, director,  may appoint one of its Partners, 

karta, trustee, office bearer, or Directors or Officers or Authorised 

representative shall produce the Representatives to participate in

requisite authority as prescribed by the meeting to exercise the right to

the Board. vote. In case of such persons, the 

concerned partner, director, karta, 
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trustee, office bearer, or 

representative shall produce the 

requisite authority as prescribed 

by the Board.

24 22 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:- ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:-

IV)  VOTING III)  VOTING of definition of 

B)  ACTIVE MEMBER:- Active Member.

No existing clause. a)     Active Member shall have one 

vote irrespective of the number of 

shares held. 

b)     Individual Members shall 

vote in person, while a Firm or a 

Company or HUF or LLP or any 

Body Corporate constituted under 

any law for the time being in force 

or Government which is a member, 

may appoint one of its Partners, 

Directors or Officers or Authorised 

Representatives to participate in  

the meeting to exercise the right to 

vote. In case of such persons, the 

concerned partner, director, karta, 

trustee, office bearer or 

representative shall produce the 

requisite authority as prescribed 

by the Board.

c)     A member shall acquire a right 

to vote in election of the Board of 

Directors only after the completion

of one year from the date of his 

admission to the membership of 

the Bank.

d)   An Active Member who becomes 

In view of insertion
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a defaulter shall not be eligible to 

vote in the election of the Board of 

Directors as well as the Annual or 

Special General Meeting of the 

Bank.

Provided that while considering the 

voting rights of the defaulter, the 

cut-off date shall be taken as the 

beginning of the first day of 

previous month to the date of 

General Meeting/Election.

25 24 BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- Part of the text deleted

i)     The Board of Directors of the i)     The Board of Directors of the  since irrelevant.

Bank shall consist of Eleven Bank shall consist of Eleven 

Directors. However, the Board in Directors.

existence at the time of registration 

under the Act shall consist of 17 

Directors.

26 24 BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- To insert provision for 

ii)    Eleven directors will be elected ii)   Eleven directors will be elected reservation of seats in
th by the ordinary members of the Bank amongst the active members of the view of 97 Constitution

as per the procedure laid down in the Bank as per the procedure laid down Amendment.

Act, Rules and Bye-laws. Eleven in the Act, Rules and Bye-laws. There

directors will include with suitable will be reservation of one seat for  

banking experience as per scheduled caste or scheduled tribes 

requirement of the Reserve and two seats for women amongst 

Bank of India. eleven  directors.

27 24 BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- BOARD OF DIRECTORS:- To provide for co-opting 

iv)   In case the elected members of iv)   In the event the elected members expert directors.

the Board do not have two members of the Board do not have two members

fulfilling the requirements of the fulfilling the requirements of the Reserve 

Reserve Bank of India then up to Bank of India, the Board may co-opt 

two ordinary members with   two directors in addition to eleven

suitable Banking experience and /  directors as specified in Bye-Law No.
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professional 

qualifications shall be 

co-opted by the Board or having specialization in any field 

of Directors. relating to the objects and activities 

undertaken by the Bank.

28 26 DISQUALIFICATION FOR BEING DISQUALIFICATION FOR BEING To insert disqualification 

A MEMBER OF BOARD:- A MEMBER OF BOARD:- of member in view of

i)    (o)  He is not an Active Member insertion of   

No existing Bye-Law of Active Member.

29 28 COMMITTEES / SUB COMMITTEES / SUB To insert provision for 

COMMITTEES:- COMMITTEES:- Audit and Ethics

The Board of Directors may The Board of Directors may Committee.

constitute an Executive Committee constitute an Executive Committee

and other committees/ Sub committees and other Committees/ Sub Committees 

as may be considered necessary as may be considered necessary

provided that other committees or provided that other Committees or 

Sub committees other than the Sub Committees other than the 

Executive Committee shall not Executive Committee shall not exceed 

exceed three. The Board may delegate  three. Out of such three Committees 

any of its powers and functions  one shall be an Audit and Ethics 

mentioned in Bye-law No. 30 to Committee. The Board may delegate 

an Executive Committee consisting  any of its powers and functions 

of not more than 10 members of the mentioned in Bye-law No. 30 to an 

Board of Directors including the Executive Committee consisting of not 

Chairman and the Managing Directors. more than 10 members of the Board of 

50% or minimum three members Directors including the Chairman and 

whichever is higher shall form the the Managing Directors. 50% or 

quorum for the meeting of the minimum three members whichever is 

Executive Committee. The  higher shall form the quorum for the 

Composition of the Committees /  meeting of the Executive Committee. 

Sub Committees, their functions,   The Composition of the Committees / 

quorum, day of notice etc., shall  Sub Committees, their functions, 

be as decided by the Board  quorum, day of notice etc., 

of Directors from shall be as decided by 

time to time. the Board of Directors from 

time to time.

or with relevant 24 (i), having experience in the field 

of banking, management and finance 

definition
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30 29 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS:- OF DIRECTORS:- convening meeting by

v)    Half the number of the total v)    If chairman or vice chairman CEO.

strength of the Board of Directors fails to fix the date of meeting of 

shall form a quorum for a Board the Board, CEO of the Bank shall

meeting and half the number of the convene the meeting on receiving
th total strength of the sub-committee requisition from minimum 1/4

shall form a quorum. of the Directors.

Note: If half the number of the 

total number of Directors is a  

fraction figure, it shall be rounded 

to the nearest figure on upper side 

and such rounded figure shall  

constitute a quorum. 

31 29 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD MEETINGS OF THE BOARD To redefine the

OF DIRECTORS:- OF DIRECTORS:- quorum.

vi)   One third of the total strength of

No existing clause the Board of Directors shall form a

quorum for a Board Meeting and

participation of the Directors by

video conferencing and other 

electronic means shall also be 

counted for the purpose of quorum. 

32 29 MEETINGS OF THE BOARD MEETINGS OF THE BOARD To amend in view of 

OF DIRECTORS:- OF DIRECTORS:-  amendment at

Note: If half the number of the total Note: If one third of the total number Bye-Law No. 29(vi).

number of Directors is a fraction of Directors is a fraction figure, it 

figure it shall be rounded to the shall be rounded to the nearest figure

nearest figure on upper side and such on upper side and such rounded 

rounded figure shall constitute figure shall constitute a  quorum.

a quorum. 

33 32 ELECTION:- ELECTION:- Part of the text -

vi)   No member of the Bank shall be vi)   No member of the Bank shall be ‘Approved by Central 

eligible for being chosen as , or for eligible for being chosen as , or for Registrar of Co-operatives 

being elected as member of Board if being elected as member of Board if Societies, New Delhi

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD To insert procedure for

proposed



75 42 Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue  

Sr.
No.

Bye
Law
No.

Text of present Bye Law
Purpose for amending

Bye-Law

Text of Bye-Law after incorporation 

of proposed Amendments

such member has been a member of  

the Bank for less than 12 months the Bank for less than 12 months -  Deleted since 

immediately preceding the date of immediately preceding the date of irrelevant.

such election of appointment such election of appointment;

(Approved by Central Registrar of 

Co-operatives Societies, New Delhi 
thfrom 25   October 2010);

34 32 ELECTION:- ELECTION:- To insert the clause for 

ix)   The election of the Board shall scheduling the election

Sub clause 32 (ix): be conducted before the expiry of the of the Board.  

No existing clause term of the Board so as to ensure that 

the newly elected members of the 

Board assume office immediately on 

the expiry of the office of members  

of the outgoing Board.

35 35 POWERS AND FUNCTIONS OF POWERS AND FUNCTIONS OF To amend the period for  

THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE:- THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE:- presenting draft annual

x)    Present the draft annual report x)    Present the draft annual report report and financial

and financial statements for the and financial statements for the statement to 

approval of the Board within 30 days approval of the Board within 45 days the Board. 

of closure of the financial year; of closure of the financial year

36 44 AUDIT:- AUDIT:- To define procedure for

No existing clause Any vacancy created by resignation appointment of auditor

or death of an auditor shall be filled in case of resignation or 

by the Board out of panel of auditors death of an auditor.

approved by the Central Registrar.

Accounts of the Bank shall be audited  

within six months of the close of the  

financial year to which accounts  

relate.

37 No existing Bye-Law:- 50)   THE CO-OPERATIVE To insert provision for

INFORMATION OFFICER AND THE Co-operative Information 

CHIEF INFORMATION OFFICER:- Officer and the Chief

thsuch member has been a member of from 25  October 2010’

To insert the period 

within which audit

shall be completed.



42 nd Annual Report 76

Sr.
No.

Bye
Law
No.

Text of present Bye Law
Purpose for amending

Bye-Law

Text of Bye-Law after incorporation 

of proposed Amendments

The Co-operative Information 

Officer and the Chief Information 

Officer shall be appointed by the 

Board of Directors. They shall be 

full time paid employees of the 

Bank. The Co-operative Information 

Officer shall provide, on an 

application by the ordinary member 

and payment of prescribed fees, 

information about the affairs and 

management of the Bank within 

thirty days from the date of 

application and the Chief Information 

Officer shall hear and dispose 

off any complaint regarding 

non-supply by the Co-operative 

Information Officer within  

a period of thirty days.

38 50 MISCELLANEOUS:- 51)  MISCELLANEOUS:-

iii.   The filing of returns to the  iii)  The filing of returns to the of filing returns in

Central Registrar shall be as per Central Registrar shall be as per electronic form. 

the provisions of Section 120 of the provisions of Section 120 

the Act. of the Act.

Information Officer.

To insert provision 

The Bank shall also file the returns 

in the electronic form.

Note: 

1. All the amendments to the Bye-Laws as stated above shall come into force with effect from the date on which 
the amended   Bye-Laws are registered by the Central Registrar.

2. The word “Society” is replaced by the word “Bank” wherever is applicable to bring more clarity in the text of 

Bye-Laws.

3.  Due to addition/deletion of some definitions/clauses in Bye-Law, Bye-Law numbers/ sub-numbers are 

changed in amended Bye-Laws.






